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for the Government of the Dominion of Canada. 

R. J. McLAUGHLIN, K.C., A. G. BROWNING, K.C., and W. T. J. LEE, 
for the Depositors. 

McGREGOR YouNG, KC., for the Attorney General of Ontario. 

R. A. REID, for certain shareholders; ( Opposing the double liability). 

Sir THOMAS WHITE, KC., appearing on his own behalf. 

ARGUMENT BY MR. REID, continued. 

Mr. REID: When we adjourned last evening, my lord, I was dealing with 
the annual reports and Mr. Haney's connection with the bank, and his know-• 
ledge of the conditions of the bank at the time, between 1916 and 1923, and I 
think it would be more convenient, perhaps, if I confined my remarks to that 
period in view of the dates contained in the reference, as far as possible, except 
where it may be neces;;ary to refer to an earlier year, to show the connection 
between Mr. Haney, Mr. Crerar, and others. 

I made the statement last evening that Mr. George Edwards, the account­
ant and auditor called by thr Government, had stated in the witness box, which 
is also confirmed by Mr. Clarkson, I think, that the stock of the Home Bank 
between 1916 and 1923 had no value whatever, in fact, it was absolutely worth­
less. It was even worse than worthles::,, because it makes those who bought 
or held stock during that period ref;ponsible for the double liability now. 

Mr. LEE: What date was that? 
Mr. REID: Between 1916 and 1923. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: What is the reference to Mr. Edwards' statement? 
Mr. REID: It was in his evidence, when you called him. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: I do not recall it, that is all. 
Mr. REID: I asked him that myself. I asked him if the stock had any 

value, and he said "No, none whatever." 
Up at Osgoode Hall, in the Riddell library, there is a book entitled "Great 

Imposters of History," and I think in that book it deals with bankers and others 
who have figured before the world at various times in connection with bank 
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failures, and other matters, and I have no hesitation in saying that if the author 
of that book had lived a little longer, or had deferred the publication of his book, 
he would have had an opportunity to include in it probably one of the worst 
pieces of imposition and one of the worst financial scandals in the history of any 
country in the world. Here we have 1,800 shareholders and 60,000 depositors on 
whom absolute misery, ruin and poverty has bcpn brought, driven to poor­
houses, put out on the -,trect, and ruined forever because of the false and fradu­
lent statement~ fcnt out through the mails to thern in printed form, and to the 
public. 

At the annual meeting in 1915, which is the year before the inquiries and 
complaints commeneed to pour in to Mr. Haney and Mr. La:::h and others, 
Mr. Haney is pre-,,ent at that annual meeting, and there is a letter on file in the 
evidrnce from Mr. Fisher, I think it is, where complaints had been made as early 
as 1914 regarding the condition of the bank, and, as I :5ay, ~fr. Haney is present 
at the annual meeting in 1915 and he approves of the st:ltement then Lid before 
the shareholders at that annual meeting held on the 29th day of June, 1915. 

In the report for that year, both Mr. Clark8vn and Mr. Edwards show that 
the interest commenced to be capitalized, that is, in Mr. Clarkson's report. 

Mr. LAFLEt:~: The Clarkson report is not filed. Mr. Clarkson gave his 
evidence and consulted his report, but t~ie report itself is not in evidence, as far 
as I rrmember. 

Mr. Ri:rn: , I saw it in the evidence. 
Mr. LAFLE1JR: Would it not be better to simply refer to the evidence, 

because there are some portions of that report that are not before this tribunal. 
Mr. REID: Of Mr. Clarkson's report? 
Mr. LAFLErR: Yes. 
Mr. REID: The report I am referring to is the report of Mr. Clarkson to 

the Supreme Court, a report which is referred to all through his eYidrnce. 

Mr. LAFLEl:'R: But it is not in evidence, and for reasons whieh were given 
at the time and here approved by the Commisc.,ioner, because there were some 
accounts which it wa::l not useful or proper to discuss. 

Mr. Rnn: I do not propme to discuss any particular account'l, I am just 
referring particularly to his view of the evidence as a result of his investigation 
into these various matters and accounts. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: ·why not refer to the evidence? 
Mr. REID: I thought it was referred to all through his report. 
Mr. LAFLEUR: No. ., 
Mr. REID: Very well. 
His LoR9sHIP: I suppose you thought we had the report in evidence. 
Mr. REID: I did look through the evidence, and I saw it referred to all 

through his evidence, and I thought it perfectly right and proper to make those 
references to it. 

The point is, however, that in that year, at any rate from the evidence of 
Mr. Clarkson, and I think the evidence of Mr. Edwards, the interest commenced 
to be added to the accounts, and fictitious profits were shown with which to pay 
dividends. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: They always did from the beginning. 
Mr. REID: They always did from the beginning, I think there is no doubt 

whatever about that. 
Mr. LAFLE1..1t: That is in his evidence. 
Mr. REID: Now, coming down to 1916, which is the year that the lett-ers 

and complaints commenced to pour in to Mr. Lash and otl).ers, Mr. Haney is 
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also Vice-Pref:ident of the bank, and he signs the printed statement, which was 
also f:ent to the Government, sent out to the shareholders as Vice-Pre;;ident, 
and in that report of the director::; to the shareholders he refers to the fad that 
the profits of the bank have been reduced by reason of the war, but dividends 
have been paid and provided for at the rate of 5 per cel).t per annum, and he 
goes on to show that the profits have been earned and the dividends justified in 
payment, where as the fact is that, at that very date, in 1916, Mr. Crerar write1 
a letter to Mr. Haney dated April 8, 1916-

Mr. SYMINGTON: Page, please. 
Mr. REID: Page 429 of the evidence, just before the Annual Report for 

1916 is prepared. He is referring to the fact that he is going to Toronto, and 
he says:-

" We could then go over the whole situation generally and decide 
upon the form of the Annual Report as you suggest." · 

And then he goes on, further down, to refer to the fact that it may be 
nece::;sary to reduce the capital, and to work out an amalgamation ·before the 
statement is given to the public. 

;There is not one single word, there is not one single reference in thi,- Annual 
Report of any such condition as is stated in that letter, and this is the Annual 
Report for 1916 laid @efore the shareholders at the annual meeting held on the 
27th June, 1916, which shows the bank to be in a prosperous condition, with 
payment of dividend,; justified and profits being made, and yet at that very 
moment w}:ien that printed i-tatement is sent to 1,800 shareholders, and the 
public, millions of dollars, I submit, were being diverted. And you must 
remember also that this report came under the notice of the depositors. They 
usually get t'1em, although there are some people .who say they are thrown in 
the wastepaper baskets, and you would be surprised at the number of depositors 
who are anxiously waiting to get one of these reports. 

At that very date when that report i,,; 'ient out to the public,· a fraudulent, 
dishonest, misleading report, there is a frame-up going on between Mr. Haney 
and ::.\1r. Crerar to actually wipe out the reserve, to reduce the capital, and to do 
it before they present their statement to the public, and in order to do it, and 
make a misleading statement, they suggest that they had better have a meeting 
;;,n as to see what kind of a report they will -;end out, and one by which the 
public will not be able to '3er what i~ really going on. 

Mr. }:Ianry signs that report. It is actually in here signed by Hanry, and I 
pre<Jurrie the f:ame report, under the Bank Art., goes to the Government signed 
by M. J. Haney;Vice-Pre,-ident, and James ~fason, General Manager. 

In the 1917 report, in which Mr. Haney is Pre::;ident, he sign.:3 this report 
alf:o, as President, and he says:-

" The net profits after making provi:;ion for bad and doubtful debts, 
rebate of intrrest on unmatured bills under di-,.count co;;:t of management, 
etc., amount to $217,059.57-" 

It starts at the top:-
" The Directors of the Bank beg to submit to th~ shareholders the 

Twelfth Annual Report for the year ending the 31st May, 1917, accom­
panied by a statement of the Bank's affairs, and the re::mlts of the opera­
tions for the year." 

And Mr. Haney, in his President's address says:-
" This is the first meeting at which I have had the honour of meeting 

you as Pre'3ident, and I am pleased to be able to inform you that the 
Bank, as shown by its statement, has progressed steadily during the past 
year." 
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Now, at that very date, in 1917, the lo,:ses down to thr end of the year 
1916, arcording to Mr. Edwards, were $3,370,000. That is from t1le beginning 
of the bank, I presume, down to the end of the year 1916, and, in addition to 
that, the lo:::s of the capital and the re_,erve. 

Mr. SY'\1:INGTO~: Oh, no, that is inrluded. 
~r. REID: Well, down to the end of 1916 the lo:::s is $3,370.000, and Mr. 

Clark:::on says that between 1916 and 1923 it is about $4,330,000 or a total ot 
$7,700,000 in all. That is Mr. Clark:;on's evidence. 

~r. l\IcLAUGHLIN: Yes, that is it. 
Mr. REID: And the total defirit altogether, down to 1923 he es•imate:s to be 

$9,500,000, at the very time that :\1r. Haney and tl:e other Diru-•or,, but Harwy 
in partil'ular who was President, and who is referred to all through this evidence 
ft:3 a dirtator in one place and the strong man in anlYther, and the man who had 
a lot to do with the non-appointment of an auditor to makr an audit of this 
bank, sends t11is fal,::e and fn:udulrm report out, and. at the time whrn the bank 
ha,- 10:::t nlready 83,370,000, and he says the bank is prosperou,-., hu::: e:,rned 
profit,, and that they are able to pay dividends. 

In 1918 he :::i!!DR anothrr sbtrmrnt of the affairs of the bank on the 31s': 
May, 1918. That meeting i:,; hrld on the 25th June, 1918. :\1. J. Haney signs 
that again, and in the Annual Statement he says:-

" The Dirertors of tl;e Bank beg to submit to the Shareholders tl1e 
Thirte('llth Annual Report for tlie yrar ending the 31st May, 1918, acrom­
panied hy a statement of the Bank's affairs and the rnult,., of the opera­
tions for the year. 

The report of the affairs of the Bank at the close of its fo:ral year 
may be considered as ~-'ltif:,factory, Rhowing, as it. docs, a sub-tantial growth 
during the pa-,,t twelve months." 

Then further down:-
" The net profit~, after making proYi:--:ion for bad and doubt :ul debts " 

-ete., ete.,-" amount to ::5228,963.19." 

And in the address of the Pre,::ident he says:-
" The succc~s of every institution is due to the loyalty and ab:lity 

of its staff under a proper head, and I wish to say as a whole we have 
had ·a most loyal and indu-:trious staff, who, under the ran•ful and able 
supervi,-:ion of the Acting General Manager, Colonel 1Iu,-on, hnve produred 
the sati::,fartory results presented in this statrment.". 

This, remrmber, at the very time when the bank is on the down-grade, 
when it had practically lost its capital and reserve, there were no earnings, and 
interest was being capitalized. The"<' false ctatements were being ~ent out, and 
the public were being lulled into a false sense of security. Then we have those 
letters pa~~ing between Haney and Crerar as to what was the be~t to be done to 
save the situation. 

Then in 1919, my lord,-1 am just going to :::kip briefly through this for 
refrrenre-there is the Annual Statement of the bank, again ,-ignrd by :\I. J. 
Haney as President, in which he submit~ the report of the Dirertors to the 
sharehqlder:o, and he refer,; to the net profit-3 for e1e year as be:ng ~238,000 odd, 
and in his annual address he says:-

" We are plea,;rd to lay before you a report whirh, thanks to the 
energy and abilitieR of our staff, heralds a banner year for the Home 
Bank of Canada and its continued proper participation in the growth 
and development of the country." 

In 1920 Mr. Haney resigns as Pruident, but he ie eh own as pre,,ent at 
the shareholders' meetings, and there is rrference made to the change from Mr. 
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Haney to Mr. Daly, and at that annual meeting it was moved by Mr. Haney 
and seconded by Mr. Galley that the thanks of the shareholders be tendered 
to the General Manager and the other officers of the bank for the efficient man­
ner in which they have respectively discharged their duties during the pa!,t 
year. 

At that meeting also Mr. Haney expressed his pleasure in putting th.£tt 
motion to the meeting, and referred to his long association with the bank. He 
referred also to the very safo,factory growth 6f the bank, and expressed the 
belief that in spite of the tendency of larger institutions to absorb smaller ones, 
that there was still room in Canada for the smaller banks, and remarked that 
it wa~ simply a qut3tion of time before the Home Bank became one of the 
large institutions of the country. 

That report was sent out to the public through the mails, of the Annual 
Meeting held on the 29th June, 1920, at a time when the bank was going down, 
losing millions of dollars every year, not thousands but millions, and Haney 
knew it all the time. He had been President, and had been connected with thi;;: 
bank since 1905 when he signed the agreement to take over the assets and 
liabilitiC'<s of the Home Savings and Loan Company, and he knew ·every single 
thing that was going on at those meetings. A more experienced financial man 
it would be hard to find. He knew everv financial deal connected with the 
bank. During all tha: period of time he 

0

knew what was going on and, as I 
say, he was just as good a':5 any financial man in this country. 

In 1921 the bank statement is presented under the new Presidency. All 
through this period that l have referred to Mr. Haney, from 1915 down to 1920 
when he resigned, the current loans and discounts in Canada are shown in 
the bank statement running from ten, eleven, up to fifteen million dollars and 
the overdue debts as only about $76,000; the call and short loans from $1,000,000 
to $1.622,000. Those figures are deliberately false, and known to Mr. Haney and 
the other Directors to be ,:o, tho,.:e were bad debt,,, this item of $15,000,000 in this 
1921 statement, and last year I think $14,000,000, those are really overdue debts 
carried as current loans and they knew it. They were not only debts but 
overdue bad debts, dead horses carried as current loans to mislead and deceive 
the depositors and shareholders in this bank. The same thing applies to the 
statement of 1922, I do not think it necessary to go over it in detail, this is 
under Mr. Daly's presidency, and he refers to the increase of deposits, and it 
was moved by Haney at that annual meeting held on June 27th and ser,onded 
by \V. J. GrPen that the thanks of the c,hareholders be tendered to General 
Manager and st.riff for their efficient management, and Mr. Haney exprrssed 
pleasure in making this motion, adding that the satisfactory nature of the 
st.1tement presented simply confirmed what he had expected. Now it is just 
a question as to what he had rxpected. 

Now my lord in view of all these statements and this conduct of Mr. Haney 
who was as I said a pillar of the Church, a leader in society, a trustee of the 
Hou~e of God, President of the Bank, Director of a Trust Company, and hold­
ing all these other offices and held in the highest e:::teem, how can a man of that 
stamp holding the positions he does come before the shareholders and put a 
statement of that kind before them, and at the same time thut he is putting this 
statement before the public be framing up a job with Crerar to mislead and 
deceive them? This is the keystone of this whole invC'Stigation, there was a 
frame-up and fraud being practiced on the shareholders and depositors unknown 
to them by these men under cover, they were also misleading the Government 
and Haney and Crerar knew all about it at the time. The evidence is there 
plain as noonday in that letter of April 8, 1916. I say Haney was a mean 
trickster and he knew it, and had no business whatever to mislead and deceive 
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these innocent people and bring this privation and poverty upon them. But my 
present point is that their fraud and ra-scality were so transparent that those 
before whom this misinformation was given should not have been carried away. 
He may have been a dictator and a strong man to some people, but surely there 
are big enough men in the Government not to allow every one to mislead and 
put these tran:,parent frauds over the~. I submit there was sufficient brought 
out, Haney was Joing his work and his fraud in such a way thut it i:;hould have 
caused suspicion and should have put people on inquiry and have bern enough 
to bring about an investigation. 

I think Mr. Haney, although he is a :;:ick man, should be brought to book 
for this matter, I think he should be put on trial with these other Directors so 
that the truth may be brought out, if they are innocent let them be acquitted. 
But we cannot here to-day pass remarks about people who are under indict­
ment, some of them may be innocent, Haney may have worked his fraud and 
trickery on these men the imme as the others, but Haney should be brought 
to book, and I think thi;,, Commission should have this man brought before it· 
in some way, or a deputation from your lordship accompanied by reporters 
and others should vi,,nt this man and grt a ~tatement from him. 

I was going on to say that England has had its Terence Hooley and 
Whittaker Wriirht, Scotland its Glasgow bank wreckers, the United State3 its 
Teapot Dome scandal, Massachusetts its Ponzi, but I think Ponzi and the reRt 
were pikers, to use a common cxpn: ,~ion. compar,'d wifa Haney and the gang 
he had around him wrecking the Home Bank. What they did not know about 
fraud and trickery is not knowledge ~t all. 

Now it is not a very nice thing to have to criticize· men who are in Par­
liament unner-e!"-,arily, and I do not propose to do so, but Mr. Crerar cert:.tinly 
has a large share of blame in this matter. Mr. Crerar was in a rather peculiar 
position, he was eiected a Director in 1910 and remained a Director until 
1918, when he re:;:igned. During all- that time beginning with 1916 he WUti 

writing letters in an endeavour to get an investigntion of the Home Bank, an 
outside audit. But the time come., when Mr. Crerar finds that the bank is. 
going <lo"\"\n rrade every year, it did go down every year, and Mr. Crerar is as 
much a party to the annual statements ~cnt out by this bank between 1915 
and 1923 when it failed-

.Mr. LEE: Mr. Crerar was not a Director after a. certain period. 
Mr. REID: Yes, I am going to refer to that, he was a Director in 1915, 

1916, l917 and 1918. And Mr. Crerar had a wrong impression of his dutieR 
as Director of a bank, he had an idea that he was a Director of a compartment 
of a bank. I submit that as a Director of the Home Bank Mr. Crerar is 
equally liable for all these false statements contained in these reports, if they ~ 
did not come to his knowledge it was his duty to have them brought to his 
knowledge or find them out. But as a matter of fact what do we find? Mr. 
Crerar in the letter I have referred to of April 8th, 1916, to Mr. Haney !:>ay::1 :-

Mr. SYMINGTO'l': You had better read it correctly this time, you did not 
last time. Don't leave words out. 

Mr. REID: I am not intentionally. It is on file, it can, be read. He says:-
" I have, as you know, been under the impression that we may have to 

clean off entirely the present rei::erve of the bank in order to present a 
correct report to the shareholders. Of course the present examination 
of affairs going on under your direction with Mr. Machaffie's assif:;tance 
may show that this will not be necessary, but having in view the possi­
bility that the full reserve of the bank may have to go, and assuming 
even a worse construction, that there may have 'to be a reduction in the 
capital, I think it is important to have under serious consideration 
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the course that should be followed. What effect would such a possibility 
as I have just mentioned have upon public confidence in the bank in 
Toronto and other Ontario points. If it would have a serious disturbing 
effect in the way of destroying confidence and subsequent withdrawal 
of drposits, it seems to me much better to work out an amalgamation, if 
possible, before our statement is given to the public, since we would be in 
a much bettE-r po&ition to dispose of our as~ets prior to the loss of con­
fidence of the public than after that had taken place. I desire to mention 
this only as a thought that has been in my mind in connection with the 
affairs of the Institution, and I have no doubt but that you and the 
other Directors in the East have all these possibilities under considera­
tion." 

There is what is running in his mind. He sees the bank going dmvn hill, 
he sees the storm coming, that it is going to break, he knows the loss!::" that haYe 
taken place, he knows that down to this period the capital and rr~erve of the 
bank is going to be lost, that the deficit to that period was nearly $4,000,000, 
and he c:uys: Now is our chance, we are going to get out while the getting is 
good, we are going to dispose of our assetR, ,ye have $133,000 at stake here and 
if the hank goes down and we go with it we will have to put up another $100,000. 
I have $6,600 myself in it, Mr. Kennedy has $4,300, he will have to put up 
another $4,300 and I another $6,600 and the United Grain Growers another 
$100,000, so the thing for us to do is to get out while the getting is good, never 
mind the public. we have the inside information and we will use it. That is 
the attitude in that letter, there can be no mistake about it. What doe,; he do? 
He is sworn in as Minister of the Crown in October, 1917, and he resigns a~ 
Direct0r of the bank in January, 1918, but it is not accepted until June al the 
annual meet.ing-

.:Ylr. SYMINGTON: No, it is accepted right away. 
:\Ir. REID: Hanry writes a letter in which he says it was not accepted until 

June, 1918, it i,- in the annual report. 
M,·. f!YMINGTON: Tt. was accepted but it did not come before the annual 

meeting m:{il June. 
Mr. RE'i'f;'- \ ftcr tr.is rrsignation, on .June 26th, 1918 (page 473) there 

is a letter writt~!l from Haney to Crerar, Exhibit 167, in which he says:-
" \Jy \DEAR Mn. CnnAR: I herewith enclose you cheque for $500 

Directors f~ ~f the Home Bank for the p~st year. I make this for the 
full term of tl:1._e year, aR your surcE"",Or wa'l appointed only shortly 
prior to our annu'ril meeting. 

" As you will se~, by our statement, we have made fair pro1l;I'f. , dur-
ing the past year, anct'--,have every reason to believe it will continue... · 
This I am confident will r,~ gratifying to you who were on the Board for · ·,, 
so many years." \ ', 

Exhibit No. 168 written on tlw Department of Agriculture letterhead. 
Minister's office, Ottawa, June 28th, 19IS-;i-s--1'1r. Crerar's reply to Mr. Haney:-

" DEAR MR. HANEY: I have to thank y0~ for your letter of June 26th 
and the cheque enclosed. 

I have not yet had an opportunity to 8ee the report of the bank for 
the present year, further than a statement of the ;-,rofits made-which 
would indicate, as you state, that fair progress had been made during 
the year." 

I 
There is what happens. He resigns from the bank, he takes his $500 for Directors 
fees, he knows, from the correspondence that he has been carrying on with 
Haney, Lash and others that the losses have been tremendous, from the inside 
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he knows that, he knows that there have been no profit<; made, and he s.1y,;; he 
hopes the progress ·will rontinue. There was a slight profit made in 1918 I 
believe, but how can there possibly be any profit tha~ any reasonable man or 
Accountant would take notice of when the losses down to that date have been 
$3,370,000? That i::: ju"t r:imnuflage, a hiding of the real truth, there could not 
be any profit under tho::ie circumstanreF, and Crerar km,w it. 

Then in 1918 he sells part of his own stock, and ::idb the balance in 1923, 
and in 1919 wh:.it doe.3 he do? He sells the whole i::tock of the Grain Growers 
amounting fo $100,000 to Mr. Daly, sells out lock, i:,toclc and barrel. 

:'.\Ir .. SYMINGTON: Be fair. Mr. Crerar's evidence e:hows that he had nothing 
to do with that, it was sold at Winnipeg. 

1 Mr. HEID: I say a':l the result of inside information whirh Crerar had he 
posted Lis Winnipeg principals on the condition of the bank and they sold the 
:;tock, and the fact of the matter is that in his letter of April 8, 1916, he says:-

" we would be in a much better position to dispose of our abets prior 
to the loss of confidence of the public than aftn that hnd taken place." 

He wants to get rid of the a:;set::-. \Vhat u,-.-;cts did tlwy have? They had the 
sto,·k in the b:mk. Thry "anted to save the Grain Growers, and in order to do 
so, using the inside information _he had he dispos(·':l of the stock. 

~Ir. SYMH,r.TON: Are you sue:ii;Psting that the a>-::-ds there rderred to are the 
Gmin Growers' a,-~ets or tbe bank's as,:ets? 

Mr. Rno: That refers I i:-ay to the Grain Growers and to the bank. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Surely not. Did you ever hear anytLing 80 silly. 
His LORDSHIP: That is your argument anyway. 
Mr. REID: The point is he did dispose of it, and I s.1y further that a peculiar 

coincidence about it 's that ~1r. Kennedy who was a Grnin Growers Director, 
became a Home Bank dirt>ctor in 1908, and in 1914 he addres:;ed the meeting, 
said he wa:; delighted to be there and delighted with the progrp~-; of the bank, 
hoped they would progre.ss and so on; he re::;igns in 1919, the same year that the 
Grain Growers sold their stock to Daly for $100,000, and he is Vice-Pre,-ic'.tent of 
the Grain Growers. 

In other words the Grain Grower:-, Crerar and Kennedy knew _));.fiat was in 
the air, knew what was coming, and they used that inside inform,'.}l10n to get out 
while the getting was good, they lost nothing on the Home Ban,k, in fact made 
a profit figuring the intcre,,t taken a:; dividends during the /time they were 
direttors and shareholder,-. , ,I 

Now just a few more words. In the evidence, Exhil;'4it No. 124 (235) Mr. 
Crnai> writes t.o l\l. J. Haney 'on the United Grai~ 'drawers letterhead from 
Winni_pe6 ·on January 3, 1918:- ,' 
./ "DEAR MR. HANEY,-ln handing yo~1,; as I do herew:th, my resigna-

/ tion from the directorate of your Bank,>t have thought it well to accom­
pany it "·ith this explanatory letter. ' 

"In the first place, let me say i\{at I am placing my resignation in 
your hands at this particular...-t'i:mc for the reu~on that having accepted 
a place in the Dominion. Cabinet I felt that I ought not to contmue to fill 
the position of a Bank director. 

" And, having regard to the somewhat strong tPrms in which for a 
considerable ti.me past my Western colleague on the Board ahd myi:,elf 
have felt it uur dutv to criticise some features of the Bank's past manage­
ment and to urge the taking of certain steps that we felt to be to the 
Bank's advantage, I may say that our views have not changed, and in 
retiring now from the Board I will still entertain the hope that the views 
we have so pressed will, to some extent at least, be approved by you and 
acted upon by the Board. These views are somewhat fully set forth in 
my letter to you of the 14th June last." 

.. 
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Now, Mr. Crerar becomes :'.Vli_nister of Agriculture in the Government in October, 
1917, he is there as an agriculturalist. I used to hear a gentleman down in the 
Maritime provinces some years ago say he had often heard of candidates run­
ning on one si<le being called agriculturalists and opposing candidates asking 
for support bPrause they ,rnre farmers, and this man wanted to know the differ­
ence: Well I will tell you what it is, a farmer is a man who works the land, an 
agriculturalist is a man who works the farmer. With all due respert I think 
~fr. Crerar is an agricuJturalist in the true sen'le of the word, because he certainly 
set himself to work the farmers. 

In October .1917 he became. a Member of the Dominion Government and 
was a -Member until 1919, June I think, and he does nothing during that time. 
He knows the condition of the bank, has all the inside information, is in a posi­
tion to force his opinions on the Cabinet, to get the audit, the inquiry, to get 
the information he was m;king for year after year as he says himself, but h0 
doc; not do a single thing. He is like the bad penny, he turns up a,;; a ~1ember 
of another Governmmt in 1921, he is always on the job when the Government 
is in power, and in 1921 he gets in again as a supporter of the presPnt, Govern­
mPnt, and he was there until the bank failed in 1923, and h<? does not do a 
single thing, does not lift a finger, we hear nothing about investigation or 
mea:--Lm·s takrn to protect the shareholders or depo1,itors, nothing about any 
inquiry, no single thing done and· the bank allowrd to drift to ruin with Mr. 
Crerar's full knowledge of everything, when he was in a position to ask for it 
ancl dPmand it he allows these people to go to their ruin. All tho;..c women and 
clulclren and orphans go to their death and he swims ashore and leaves them 
behind I submit that is a most rascally thing to do. I don't wish to ~ay any 
hard thing::; about Mr. Crerar when he is a member of the Home, but I c::ay in 
view of all these things, that it was a cold, callous, heartlc':3s and ra::<cnlly thing to 
do, and I think the people of Western Canada will deal ,vith him at the right time 
in view of the trail of wrong he has left out there. They say:-

" Lives of great men all remind us 
We can make our lives sublime, 

And, dep:.uting, leave behind us 
Footprints .in the sands of time." 

I am satisfied they will have no trouble to find Crerar's footprints in the West 
berause he has left them big enough and they won't require bloodhounds to find 
him. I say it was a shameful thing to do, in view of the so-called friend he said 
he ,rn~ and the efforts he was making to get an outside audit when he was in a 
po~ition to do it; he could have brought about an amalgamation of this bank 
with some other bank; he could have 1 forced the Bankers' Association to take it 
over; he could have taken some financial meam, some steps to save this situa­
tion right after he became a member of the Dominion Government in 1917, and 
as I said yesterday, when in my examination of him I asked him what steps he 
took after he came to a position in the Cabinet, where he could do something of 
·rral worth, he says: If you mean, what did I do with the Directors of the Home 
Bank to get an investigation and to help the bank, I did not~ing; and if you 
mean to ask me what I did when I came into the Dominion Cabinet, to bring it 
about, I refuse to answer. There is the position: you will be damned if you do 
and you will be damned if you don't. The ship goes down, everybody is drowned 
and lo,,;t but Crerar and Kennedy and the United Grain Growers who swim ashore 
in safety. I do not think that is a position that commends itself to anybody. I 
am sure it does not to yd'Ur lordship and it won't to this Government when they 
con::;ider the circumstances under which this thing has happened. Mr. Crerar 
sPemPd to have the idea that he should follow the Biblical expression: "Where 
your treasure is, there will your heart be also." And Mr. Crerar's heart was with 
his stock and the safety of the United Grain Growers. He cared nothing for the 
people who were shareholders and depositors and he let them go to their doom. 
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Now, my lord, just one more word. I omitted to make a reference to one 
thing that I think should be on record, and that is in regard to the prospectus 
whkh was ibsued in the West by what at that time was known as the Grain 
Growers Company Limited and afterwards became the rnited Grain Growers 
of Canada. That prospectus was issued in 1910, and it shows Mr. M. J. Haney 
on the Board of Dirertors. The pro;;pectus is not in as an exhibit but I pro­
dured it at the hearing. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: It is not in. 
Mr. REID: Mr. Crerar ,admitted that he had knowledge of it, he knew 

about it, and they ic:suf'Cl it, his own company ic-;ued it. 
Mr. SYMrnGTON: That does not make any difference; it is not filed in this 

inquiry. 
Mr. RErn: I ran comment on it. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: You can comment on th answers that are in evidenrr. 
Mr. :R~rn: I have no dc-;ire to say anything about any document that is 

not in evidence. I do not want to do that of rour::,e. This prospectus which 
was i::lsued to the farmers of ,vestern Canada was ;ssued for the purpo-e of 
inducing the farmers of Western Canada to buy stork in the Home Bank, and 
it wu,-; i;;~Ul'd by ~Ir. Crerar's and l\Ir. Kenrn•dy's m,·n company. Tl.l· farmers 
bought ftork in the Home Bank of Canada on the i;trength of that proi'pectus; 
and the United Grain Growers Company, of which ]\Ir. Crerar was PrP~ ident, 
wai=- paid a commiRi=-ion for selling the sto1•k to the farmers of Wc;;tern Canada; 
and stork in the Home Bank of C:!nada was Fold to the farmers of Western, 
Canada ri!!ht up to seven or eight days before the bank closed its doors. 

Mr. SunNGTON: Not by the Grain Growers Company. 
Mr. REID: I am not saying that, but I think I can prove directly that the 

hundred thousand dollars' worth of st-Ock which ~fr. Crerar and the rnited 
Grain Growers Company turned over to Mr. Daly was afterwards, within a 
few weeki:i, peddled out t-0 the farmers of Western Canada, and the bank then 
insolvent, bankrupt; so that they lost their capital, lo::it their resource~; and 
losses were being shown as profits; overdue bad debts running up to $15,000,000 
carried as current loans; and interest being capitalized; the shares had 
absolutely no wotth then, no value, scraps of paper according to the Govern­
ment'B own auditor; and at that very same time the farmers of WeFtern Canada 
were putting their money in the Home Bank and buying the shares of stock 
on the faith of the representations sent to them. I hope later on, at another 
phase of this inquiry, to be able to show that that stock was·the United Grain 
Growers stock that was sold t-0 Mr. Daly, and it was done under an arrange­
ment. 

Now, i,:m't it a rascally thing, when you come to think nf it, that the 
farmers and unsuspecting people who had an abiding faith in these men 
in the West, men who had sent out a prospectus to these people saying 
that we want to build up the Home Bunk of Canada, we want to make 
it a farmers' bank, it is a home bank, a bank in which we huve faith, 
and confidence in all these men, and on the strength of that, putting their 
money on deposit in the Home Bank? The employees of the Grain 
Growers Company, Mr. Crerar's own employees, put their money in it and 
lost it. And then the;:;e same men to turn around and on the quiet, unknown 
to anybody, boring from within, or undermining them, as shown in their 
corre::;pondence, in their letters, at the same time that the bank had gone with 
no posl:'ible hope of ever recovering itself, and Crerar and Haney knew it, 
they sell ourt. These are the two con::-pirators in this bank. Thrse are the two 
men who could have saved this bank and didn't do it, never liftrd a finger to do 
it, when they had the power, authority and position to do it, ::;ix year::; before 
the bank failed. The date of the failure is Augm,t 17th, 1923, and six yrars or 
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five years at lea:;t before that, "'.\fr. Crerar and Mr. Haney could have saved that 
bank. Mr. Crerar was in a position to do it. He could have forced the Bankers' 
Association to do something, and these losses, privations, and misery that have 
been brought upon these people by these two cunning tricksters could have 
been all prevented, but not a single thing was done. You cannot get over that; 
it is on the record, on the evidence, and shows all too clearly. I submit, my 
lord, that in your findings-I say it most reo:pertfully-it should be stated that 
all these complaints were on file, that Crerar and Haney had been sending to 
the Department, they were there on :fj.le when Mr. Crerar became 2\'Iinister of 
Agriculture, a member of the Domini.on Cabinet, and that it was m,nely a 
mat•er of him taking that file and calling the Bankers' A;,,:;ociation to Ottawa 
and laying the facts before them and saying something must be done at once. 
There can be no answer and nO' a-,.gument about it, something would have been 
done a~ that date. And I think it has been pointed out in evidence here that 
if the bank had been taken I over in 1916, that with fifty cents on the dollar 
from f:hareholders, even at that date everyone would have been paid in full. 
But the point is this, that no one need have lo:;t a dollar; the shareholders 
might have had their shares split in two, two for one, the same as the Bank of 
Montreal did with the Merchants Bank; there was no need that they should 
be lost altogether, and while the shareholders might have lost part of their 
money, they would'have· had a run for it and would have had some security. 

Now, my lord, I just wish ,to draw your attention t.o one thing more, and 
that is that reference has been made to what can be done to strengthen the Bank 
Act. One thing I omitted and forgot yesterday, I see it in my notes here, i~, 
that in the Bank Act of Canada there is a clause-I think it is 154-in any 
event, the sections dealing with the penalties for sending fal,;e returns to the 
Government; it uc;ed to be section 154 in the old Act. It is the <:ections of the 
Act dealing with the sending of false return,;; to the Government and what will 
be done if the Directors do it. Those Rertions refer to the fact that if any 
I)irector makes a false return. 

Mr. LAFLE1.m: Should we go into that? There are men under indictment 
for making false returns. 

Mr. REID: I am merely suggesting an amendment to the Bank Act, wl1ich 
his lordship might recommend. I am not speaking of the Directors at all; I 
won't mention their returns. I say that in the new Act or in any amendment 
that is being made, the section should be amended in this way. It is provided 
in the Act that if any Director or officer of the Banl,c sends a statement to the 
Government "knowingly",· and I think the sub,oection following says that if 
he submit,, a false statement" negligently", and the third case is where he does 
it " wilfully "; then what I suggest is this, that if it i§ the desire of t!ie Com­
mittee on Banking, or the Government, to amend the Bank Act in surh a way 
a>l to make it really effective, to make it of some use in the country,____:and I am 
merely drawing this to your lordship's attention as a constructive thing that 
you can refer to~then it is only nPcessary to strike out those three words in 
the Act, "knowingly," "negligently" and "wilfully," ,and make the signing of 
a fa!E,e return in itself an offence, so as to make it automatic, that is whether 
the Banker or the Director knows it to be fal':le qr not; if he submits a i:;tate­
ment from the books of the bank, of the bank's affairs, and it is false, make 
that the offence, and not compel the prosecution to prove that it was done 
wilfully, negligently or knowingly; make doing of the act itself the offence, and 
then we will have Directors who will direct banks. 

Now, my lord, I think that is all I have to say. I thank your lordi:;hip for 
your kindness in allowing the shareholders to have some little say; and later 
on, if the investigation is continued at any time, that we will be given a si.milar 
privilege to bring forward any information or evidence we may be able to 
gather for your lordship's information. 
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ARGUMENT BY MR. LAFLEl. R 

Mr. Commi:o~ioncr, a;; I told your lord-,hip at the beginning of this inquiry, 

Mr. Symington and mysplf have been chargt·d with the duty of assisting you, 

in so far as we can, in this 1-'0mewhat comph<>ated and arduous inquiry. I think 

that perhaps it may be useful, before di~rus,:ing the matter, which ha-; wandPred, 

I think, very far from the original f>'cope of the reference, so far as the drpo;:itors' 

claim is concerned, to draw your lordship's ruttention to the complaint of the 

depositors as contained in· their petition. 
You will find that at page 7 of the record, and you W\11 see that the peti­

tioners state that in the years 1915, 1916 and 1918, representations were made 

to the Department of Finance respecting the condition of the Home Bank, 

rewaling a state of affairs that would have justified an invPstigation by the 

Department of Finance under the powers conferred upon t11e Minister of Finan, r 

under section 56A of the Bank Act, whereby he w:1.,; authorized to examine and 

inquire ::;pecially into any of the affairs or business of the bank. 
The petitioner::, next say that they realize the seriousnes;; of such action on 

the part of the Minister of Finance, and that "the mPre fact of causing an 

audit to be made might,in ibelf bring about the failure of the said bank." 

That is what the petitioners my and they realize the gravity of such a 

step as is now suggested should have been taken at the time by the Minister 

of Finance when representations were made to him. 
They go on to say that they are " aware that at the time such repre;:enta- ' 

tions and disclosures were made, the country was at war," and they add that: 

" the Minister of Finance, having regard to the public intPrest, ,vas 

unwilling to precipithte a bank failure or crisis, or in any way disturb 

the financial comlition of the country, and that for :,uch reason and on 

other good and sufficient public grounds, may not have deemed it advi-;­

able to exercise the power above referred to." 

Then they say that 
"If such audit had been made your petitioner-, believe that the con­

dition of the bank would have been shown to be such that its continu­

ance in business could not have been further permitted." 
I 

And they say that if the bank had ceased doing business at the time the dis­

closures were made, the exi~ting assets would have been almost if not quite 

sufficient to meet all claims of creditors; and they submit that by reason that 

an audit was not made in accordance with the powers vested in the Minister 

of Finance, the losses of the depositors ensued, and they should be borne by " 

the public at large. • 

Now the gist of that is plainly this: that so far from charging remissness, 

or negligence on the part of the then Minister of Finance, or any other Minister \ 

of Finance, they put their claim on the ground that the Minister at the time 

was faced with conflicting public duties, one of which was an overwhelming and 

overriding duty of providing finances for the war and avoiding any disturbance 

of the credit of the country; and the subordinate duty, one which was over-

borne by the higher and more important public duty, was the looking after the 

interests of the depositors and creditors of the Home Bank. 
Now that is a-very intelligible case, and it is one that appeals to one's 

sympathy; to what extent, it is for Parliament to say; I do not know that it 

will be for your lordship to pronounce any opinion upon that case; I will 

examine that feature of the question by and by; but let me say at the moment 

that as far as that petition is concerned, that is all that was presented to the 

Government; there was no charge made of remissness in office, of malfeasance 

in office, or of neglect of any kind. 
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Now we seem to have ,rnndered v~ry far :tf.f•l•l. P.,en _.,,e tht~ whole trend of the investigation has deg2nerated on the one hand intr: a Yery Yigorous, I might almost say ferocious, attack upon the succe:;sive Ministers of Finance who held office since 1914. 
Mr. McLACHLIN: I hope I may be excepted from that. 
Mr. LAFLEUR: Well, I think my friend Mr. McLaughlin wa.,; less vitupera­tive probably, but I think that he did make the gist of his claim a charge of negligence, and then at the last he made some referenc-e to war conditions as possibly affecting the conduct of the Minister of the Crown in those difficult cir­cumstances; but I understood both Mr. McLaughlin and Mr. Lee to base their daim principally upon the negligence and the errors of judgment of the then Minister of Finance. Mr. Browning, I think relied rather on the allegation.:l of the petition as originally drafted. 
Now how far one of the learned counsel went in that direction is apparent from his remarks at pages 697 and following. He charge<, Sir Thomas White, Sir Henry Drayton and the Hon. Mr. Fielding with being "parties to the wreck of this institution." He says:-

" I charge these gentlemen together that they by their united action with the directors and managers, wrecked this bank and lost our money." 
Then he goes on, at the bottom of the page to say:­

" The management.looted the bank." 
and that these men, who were placed in responsible positions, in the Government of the country, helped them to do it. And then he adds:-

" Are these Finance Ministers coming back to give us our money by reason for their negligence?" 
, Now that you see is a case wholly different from the one that was set up by the depositors and I am just wondering how far your lordship will feel justi­fied in travelling with the learned Counsel in that direction? That he puts it on the ground of negligence is apparent from what he says at the top of page 698:-

" As one who has suffered by reason of this failure, I am asking this Government for something that in my opinion I am entitled to get. Why? I am entitled to get it by reason of the negligence of the officers." 
Then a little further down he says:-

"' Sir Thomas tried to steer the ship off these shoals, but did the other gentlemen do so? I leave it for your lordship to say, in answering these questions that have been submitted in our petitioil, whether we have brought sufficient evidence from which a reasonable man could find that in 1915, 1916 and 1918 things were brought to the attention of the Min­ister of Finance which under ordinary circumstances, having regard to the surrounding conditions, that the war was on"-and so on-" The interest of the depositors in this bank were guarded as care-fully as they should have been." • 
He says a little further on:-

" We find that this bank has not been wrecked wholly by the action of the directors, n·ot wholly by reason of the inaction of Sir Thomas White, but it has been wrecked by reason of the inaction of Sir Henry Drayton and the Hon. Mr. Fielding. If my. deductions are correct"-
he adds-

" And I think they are."-He says,-
" These three gentlemen are partially responsible for this wreck." 
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:Now I really would like to· know on what grounds the present claim is 

going to stand and be based. Are the learned Counsel abandoning their claim 

for a ::,ympatlwtic allowance, because in the circumstances in which the 

Mini;,ter of Finance found himself placed, he had to sacrifice the lesser interest 

to the greater national interest? Or is this going to be considered as a case 

hal"ed on negligence? On the negligence and remi,:-.npss of Mini~ters of the 

Crown? In the original petition you i::ee no rekrence made to any of the 

succc;:;;ors in office of Sir Thoma:5 White. The action complained of and in 

respect of which redress is sought, is limited to the years 1915, 1916 and 1918. 

There is no suggestion of any charge being directed against the succe.,,;ors in 

offi<-.~ of Sir Thomas White. And while I hold no brief for any of these 

Minister::;, I fr.el that we must he jutit to them. If I hold no brief for them, 

I hold no brief again:-;t them. I am not directed, nor is my colleague, Mr. 

Symington, directed to find them guilty in any re::,pect in regard to the affairs 

of thi-1 bank. We have bern charged simply, and that is our only mandate, 

to investigate impart:ally and we consider it our d1,1ty to see that no injustice 

is d,me to anyone. 
With the exception of Sir Thomas White, not one of these gentlemen 

has had the opportunity of presenting anything before this Commi;;tiion. Sir 

Henry Drayton is not charged in the petition, even by implication. Nor is 

the Hon. Mr. Fielding. They could not have imagined that it was nece,-'-ary 

for them to present any defence before your lord:::hip. As to Sir Thomas White, 

in t;pite of his own modest di:Sclaimer, he has prt-sented his own defence; and 

as your lordship realize;,, he presented it with conspicuous ability. But I 

really feel that we must not be unjutit to gentlemen who are not aimed at at all 

by the petition in any of its allegations, and who have had no opportunity 

of presenting any defence, and who could not anticipate that their conduct 

be i:.ttacked a,;; it has been. • 

X ow if I do not hold any brief for these Ministers, still less do I hold 

any brief for the Directors of this bank; and yet I am bound to say that it 

does not appear to me to 'be fair to attack either the Western or the F,a;;:tern 

Din•t tors when they are not here to defend themselves. I do not think that 

it. is pos.,il.,k for your lordship to consider the very serious chargeR that have 

been levelled against Mr. Haney for example, and Mr. Crerar, in their absence. 

We invited Mr. Haney to be present and to defend himself if he thought fit; 

but your lordship knows that we have the evidence that his state of health 

,vill not permit his -attendance before the Co,mmis~ion; and while it is inevitable 

that the affairs of the bank during the periods in question should be investigated, 

antl while it is inevitable that Mr. Haney's name 8hould come up and that, 

his correspondence should be commented on, I think we should refrain from 

any vituperative epithets against him until he has had an opportunity of 

representing his case. 
And still more so would I dissociate my,:elf-and I am sure my friend Mr. 

Symington will wish to dissoc,iate himself-from the very rnvage attack whirh 

has been made on the Hon. 1fr. Crerar. Mr. Crerar was in no way named 

the object of any unfavourable comment in the petition, or in the claim, of 

the present depositors, and I am at a lo~-:1 tb understand why his name has 

been dra~ged in, becuuse if it is true a.o the learned Counsel for the shareholders 

has submitted, that the wrecking of this bank was the work of Mr. Haney 

and ~Ir. Crerar, what becomes of the depositors' claim against the Government? 

I understood the learned Counsel for the shareholders to say that he was in 

a measure supporting the claim of the depositor':!, and that would be intelligible, 

becau:::e it would reduce the double liability of his clients, but if he tries to 

make out, and succeeds in making out, that the wrecking of this bank is 

due to the machinations and to the conspiracy between Mr. Haney and Mr. 

Crerar-

' 
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Mr. REID: And the Government, I taid. 
Mr. LAFLrt'R: No, the learned Coun,l•l rharged them with wrecking this 

bank, and if t 1rnt i:-: ,o, I-cannot ~ce where the (;vn•rnment romcs in, or where 
the rc~ponsibil)y of the :\Iini~ter come~ in. 

Now when thi:-- pro1TPding began, my friend "'.\Ir. S) mington and I very 
anxiously ron,::ir!PrPd \\·hat eour:,;e •nould be adopkd in view of the different 
intcrpsts that were involvfd, and of tl1(' proceedings that wrre ac-tually pendin11;. 
A':l your lordship knows, with r<':-pt•r·t to the Director" who were' in office just 
before the bank failed, pro~eruti,m::- I· ave been launched again~t them and 
they are now under indictment, and we came to the conclu:::i0n tk1t it would 
be improper and unfair to prejudice eitlirr the riglits of the Crown, pro::;ecuting 
them, or t~w rights of the defence, by inv1•,-tigatmg any more than Wat-> unavoid­
able, the history of the bank in it-< L1ter stage,::;; becau~P, a-, I understand it, 
the Dircl'tor::; are charged w,t!1 making fabc returns in the years immediately 
preceding the in:-:olvenrv of the bank; and we have avoided dwelling upon 
anv feature of t-he ra::-,' whi1 h might in any way trench upon the ground fiat 
is ·going to be traversed in the::;c pro,:;ceution!-, and I hope we have sucet::i':l­
fully avoided entering into tliat domain. At any rate, we have endeavoured 
to avoid injuring the ca:;;c of either the prosecution or the defence. 

Then again we thought that we :-hould ub:otuin from investigating the 
claim of the shareholders who are represented before your lordship by my 
friend, Mr. •Reid, and for the very obviou:; rea~on, that that is also the subject 
of litigation in the Onbrio Courts and we thought it would not be proper to 
go over the same ground and perhaps prejudge matters which were sub judire. 
For example, it appeared to me it was not relevant for us to consider the alleged 
irregularity or illegality in the commencement of the bank's operat.ions by 
reai-on of their having failed to get a certificate within a year, because all that 
would go to establi«hing a possible defence of the shareholders in the proceed­
ings a possible defence of the shareholders in the proceedings directed against 
them to enforce the double liability, but, as far as I cun see, it ha-, nothing 
whatever to do with the depositors of thi:,. bank. 

I therefore think that it would be grossly unfair for us when we are con­
finin~ our attention to the depo;:itors' claim against the Government to make the 
inquiry on this head a pretext for attacking persons who are not here, but 
defendants themselves. 

As I ::,aid before, of course, it wa:,; inevitable that some mention should be 
made of names of tho.-;e who figured in the transactions from 1916 to 1918, 
an<l that the bank's affairs during those years should, to an extent, be examined, 
but only so far as was necf'ssury for the decis-ion of the question now submitted 
to your lordship. 

The i>etition being such as I have de:-rribed, the Orders in Council were 
framed to meet the allegation of the dcpo:;;itors' Petition, and you will see that 
the first Order in Counril, at page 5 of the record, closely follows the words of 
the Petition, and it puts to your lordship que,,tions arising directly on those 
allegations. 

As your lordship know-,, the scope of the Order in Council was afterwards 
enlarged in response to requc~t~ made in the House of Commons so as not to 
restrict the inquiry to those years but to extend them from the time of the 
bank's creation until its failure. I do not think, however, that that will add 
anything to the depositors' case. I do not think that we have in evidence any 
rcpre><entations made at any othn time than 1916, and 1918, and while the 
inquiry was widened I do not think anything turns upon that. It may affect 
the further inquiry with respect t9 the general condition of the bank's affairs. 
but, as far as the depositors, claim is concerned, I do not think the enlarge~ 
,ment of the scope of the inquiry has any significance. 
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I am not going OV!'r all the evidence which has been so thoroughly 
examined by the learm·d rounf'cl who have preceded me, and all the more rn 
bcrame my friend, :Mr. Symington, has undertaken to prepare the exact refer­
ences to the corrrc;pondcn('e, anJ to the oral te~timony, rn as to facilitate your 
lord::'11ip's work, but I will ju~t very briefly, and in the most general way, state 
what I think should be your lord~hip's answer to the questions propounded in 
the Order in Council, which you will find on page 5. 

You are firc:t asked: 

"Whether, in the years 1915, 1916 and 1918, reprc::.entations were 
made to the Department of Finuncc of the Dominion of Canada n;s pert­
ing the condition of the Home Bank of Canada, and, if !:'O, what repre­
sentations were so made." 

:Now, undoubtedly, the following represeiit:.i.tions were made. First, repre­
Rentations were made to Sir Thomas White as to the unwillingness of the 
Directors in Toronto to give information to their Western colleagues. 

In the Recond place, repre8entations were made that enormous loans had 
been made without adequate ,.:rrurity, those loan-, being quite out of proportion 
:to the capital and reserves of the bank. 

Then in the third place, repre--entations were made that there prevailed a 
vicious practice of carrying into profit and los::l con~iderable amou~ts repre­
senting the unpaid intere~t on doubtful account-:, and of declaring dividends on 
.tlH· :-trength of the.,;e fictitious earnings. 

In the fourt-h place, the probability was clearly hinted at, by Mr. Lash 
himself, that the bank might have to liquidate. 

Thost\ are in rnb:::tance, I think, he most important if not all the repre­
~t·ntations that were made. They were not all containrd, perhaps, at the 
origin in the first memoranda that were furnished by Mr. Fislwr along with 
the supporting file of document~, but in the course of the rorre;-;pondence and 
intPrviews with 8ir Thoma;; White all of theRe mattrrs were the subject of 
diRcussirm. 

I do not think your lord:;hip will have any doubt in finding that at least 
the,:e repm,rntations were made at the time in 1916 and 1918. 

I pass on now' to the second question which is put to your lordship, anrl 

that is: 
"Whether, if sueh reprP~rntations were made, a ,:t.ate of affairs was 

revealed concerning the condition of the R~id Bank such as would have 
justified an investigation under the powerR conferred upon the l\1ini:;t1,, 
of Finance by Section 56A of the Bank Act." 

To this question Sir Thoma.,; White has raic,ed an objection on the ground 
that your lord:;hip had no right to pass upon his condurt when he wm; in the 
exercise of his functions as Minister of Finance unless he were char~ed with 
di:-;honesty, with burl faith in the exerric;e of his dufo:", anJ he cited Todds' 
Parliamentary Government to !'Rtublish that a Min~t-tcr is re"ponsible to 
Parliament, and to Parliament only, for the discharge of his duties while in 
offirP. 

I think, with deference to t hr very able argument that he presented upon 
thi,; point, that Sir 'f.homac, White was entirely in error u-; to the scope and 
meaning of this second paragraph in the Order in Council. I do not think that 
t.hat request'> your lord,:hip, or impoc;es upon your lord~hip the duty of pa-,sing 

"" upon the quality, aR he put it, of his actions as Mini,:ter of Finance. I think 
all that you are required to do is to c;ce whether such a state of factc; existed as 
would have enalikri him to exercise the pr.rmissive and admittedly discretion­
ary powers which he could exercise under Section 56A of the Bank Act. That 

' 
• 



HOME BANK OF CANADA 805 

is what you are af'hd ~o state, whether the condition of the bank was such 
as would have enabled him to act, as would have juf'tifiE'd him in acting. Con­
ceivably, there miii;ht be condit:on:;, while the Act gave him certain powers, 

' ,vLere he C'ould not exer('i~e tliem, bcrau~e the conditions did not exi:--t. If a 
trivial accu:<ation had bet n made against the bank which could be di-:provccl 
on mr.re inspection of the document:;, or if the accusation came from a 1:iuurcr 
which was not worthy of credence, why, under those circumstances it might 
well be that the l\Iini-,ter would not be justified. 

But here' the l\linister himself treated the charges as being most serious 
and coming from a quartC:r which entitled them to his :;erious consideration, 
and all as I take it that you have to report on is whether or not those con­
ditions did exist, whether the bank wa:; in such a condition that a Mini-,ter 
could reasonably and properly have exercised those powers. 

I was all the more surprised at this object.ion being raiP-ed by Sir Thomas 
\Vhite, because I understood from him during his examination, and during his 
argument, that he welcomed this investigation, and wekomed the opportunity 

• of placing before the public of Canada bis own ju:::t,ific'.ttion for his conduct, 
and feeling that he was anxious to get an opportunity of defending his conduct, 
I put queE"tions to him on that very point. 

• 

You wiII find at page 345 that I put these questions to him: 
"Q. As a result of the memorandum and other documents filed with 

you by Mr. Fisher you proceeded under Section 113 of the Bank Act to 
ask for report ?-A. I did. . 

Q. You also decided that it would justify an investigation under 
Scct:on 56A ?-A. I asked the auditor to make a report to·me. 

Q. That is under that sertion?-A. Yes, .56A, without doubt I 
proceeded under the Bank Act. 

Q. Well, you might an,,wer my question, you felt yourPPlf· justified, 
in a~king for a report under Section 56A of the Bank Act?-A. Yes, 
undoubtedly, and calling on the Board and on the auditor. 

Q. Did you call on the auditor for a report under Section 56A of the 
Act?-A. Right." 

Now, how can Sir Thomae;; object to your lordship an-,wering that qur~tion 
when he ha<i answued it himself? He has given the ant::wer, and it is the answer 
I should have expected him to give, and now I do not f;ce the utility of raising 
a nice constitutional question to know whether or not tliis Commission, or any 
other Commission appointed under the Inquiries Act, can critiei~e ,the official 
acts of a Minister in the exerriPe of his dutic::1. That is not the question before 
Ud at all. The question is one purdy of faC"t, and Sir Thomat:i White so under:::;tood 
it, and he answered the question;:;, and I submit there can be no harm in your 
lordship taking his answer, because he knows a:l well as anybody whether the 
facts justified him in taking the course that he did, and that is all that is meant 
by that question. So I do not think your lordship will be troubled at all with 
the constitutional difficulty. 

The next question is number 3, and is: 
"What action, if any, was taken by the then Minister of Finance 

upon such representations as may have been rriade." 

On that point, again I do not think your lordship need experience the 
slightest difficulty, becau,:e we know now that nothing was done except to require 
an investi~ation to be made from the inside. 

In view of the evidence before Sir Thomas White that the members of the 
Board in the East had per:;:istently withheld information from their co-Directors 
in the vVeft, one is led to a;:;k ones self ''What could have been the utility of an 
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inside audit?" And, in that ronnertion I ,rnuld n ~k your lordship's ronsidt•rutiun 

to the observations madP by the latr Chirf Ju"ti<•p Meredith in the <'Ul'-<' of the 

Fa1mrp:;' Bank, whi('h wai' a ea,:e, in many f!'"'peds, an:tlop:ous. to this. But J 

am guin!J; to refer to it by and by, as it i, the only prercdent that appc·ars t-0 

rxi2t in our annals for a pl'titi,m uf this kind, a prtition for indlrnnity or rom­

p,1.~,-ionatr a,,,.i,tane0, and I will hand thi,- paper in. whi<'h is a return m:1dP tP 

t 1ie Governor in Cuuneil by the Commi--<ioner l'Ontaining his fmding-- on thf 

t1ur,:tions submittrd to him. 
At page 9 of this judgmrnt, or of tlw,;e finding:', you will find the following 

t ,L,-rrvation. PPrliaps I should expluin to your lordship that the Petition in thi" 

r:1..,r was a petition for inrlrmnity on the ground that tbe Farmer,-' Bank ha<! 

brcn allowrcl to :-tart it.; opc·rations by rel'ci,·ing a rrrtifirate which had bet·n 

improvidently i-<--uerl without veryfying the rhargc-; of fr:1ucl which were mack 

by <'rrtain per:-ons who re"'istt'd the applit•,1tion :or a L"ertifirate. The arguml:'nt 

v.,1" that if the bank had re1·Pivrd no certificate tltrn there woud have b(•c•n nu 

b::rnk operating, and, thrrdore no los<'. It is rnmething like my friend Mr. Reid'~ 

argument, that if thi,- bank had not brrn revi:<ed in 1905 aft.er the expiration of 

tb· dday fur getting tl:e t'crtificate no lus" would have been inrnrred. 

~Ir. REID: I b1:g your pardon, I did not say the bank kid bu,11 revived. I 

say they did not reincorporate the hank. 
Mr. LAFLErR: I unclcrstooli that my le;1rned friend urged this as an 

argument, that is, the nun-exi:-tcncc of the bank, to e:;tab!i;..h that if the-- bank 

harl. bn'n allowed to die, to remain dead, then there would have been no lo•-;. 

"'ell, th,t, of eour,-r, i::- in any c:.i"oe only a remote c•ausP, and the proximate 

cau:09 of the cti~:u-trr in the F;i,rmrrs' Bank was found by the learnerl Chid 

Ju,;tir·e to be the mismanagPYnent by the Directors. Thrse remark;; were made 

in the coun,e of the judgment delivered hy the Chief Ju-,tice. You will find 

thrm page 9. The Minister had asked for as-,uranrrs with rcfpect to the faet., 
wh,eh wrre charged again:'t the promotrrs, and he rl'liecl on the word of one 

Travers "·ho had givm the assurance for whieh the Minister had asked, and the 

infnrm:1tion whirh had been conveyed to the Minister had come from gentlemen 

of standing, and if it was accurate then the declaration of this man Tra';ers was 

untrue, and the learm·cl Chief .Justice ,,ays: 

" it would ;;cem to have hu·n almo,;:t an idle thing to ask for an 

assurance that there was nu foundation for tl1e -,tatementf'- that had 

been made to the Minister from the very man whose horn ~ty wa,, in 

in question and unwise to have acted on that u~,;;urance." · 

That is a principle I ask your lorclfihip to apply in this ca::;e. It is not 

• 

binding on your lord,:hip, of coun,e, but I think it was VPry unwise to rely upon I 

the statements of thrse Dirertor,, whose relurtanre to furnish information 

to their ro-Dire('tors in the West had been romplained of, and ultimately 

that is what was done. Reliance was placed upon the report of 11r. Haney, 

which. a:, I think, wa,: clearly esfab!if:hed, eontained a tissue of erroneous 

information in regard to fundamental objections that were being made bv 

the Western Direetor:-. · 

I think, thrrefore, that your lordship will have no difficulty in reporting 

what action, if any, was t'.lken by the Minister of Finance upon the reprr::-rnta­

tions that might have been made. 
I want to refer also to the observations made by Chief Justice Meredith 

in the same casr o\ the Farmers' Bank on another que:::tion which pre,:,cnts itself 

in both these cases. 
You will remember that, for a <'onsiderable time, the W e:::tern Directors 

persistently a:Sked for an external audit. They said they would not be satic,fied 

with an inside audit. After a time, yielding, I think, to the dl;lsire of the 



,, 

HOME BA1\'K OF CANADA 807 

Em,tern Director:-, and particularly Mr. Haney, there wa:; an abandonmrnt 
of this rrque:-t for an Pxtern:11 audit, as appears from Mr. Crerar'» letter of the 
2oth March, 1916. Now, Sir Thomas White had previously taken the ;;tand 
in his letter of the 17th February; 1916, whi!'h you will find at page 162, 
that even on the reque~t of the Winnipeg Directors he would not -::tay his 
hand, because he felt that if an inquiry of this kind was ju~tified upJn t lie 
information rec:l'ived he should be very c·,.mt:ous in staying his hand and 
abandoning the inquiry, even though some kind of a compromise or settle­
ment was made between the different Dirertors. 

That very que~tion presented itself in the ra~e of the Farmer's Bank. 
In that ca~e an objection had been entered to the granting of the certificate, 
and subsequently the people who were objecting to the granting of the l'ertificiite 
were settled with, and were paid, and these are the observations of the Chief 
Justice upon that feature of thP ra-;e. He ~ay:;: 

'' That the verbal information I have mentioned was conveyed to 
Mr. Fielding was not denied though he ~tatedi that, as I have no doubt 
w..1s the fact, no formal Objection to the granting of the certificate 
was made either by Sir Edmund Osler or by Mr. Henderson. That, 
however, in my opinion, is imm.atcrial. 

'' I do not sugge:-t that the Minister would have bern ju:,,tifit·d 
buauH, nf the information conveyed to him in recommenrlin~ tlut t!1e 
certifir:.1tc should not bP granted, or that the Treasury Board berause of 
it would not have Lew justified in refusing to grant it, but, having 
received the information, it was in my opinion incumbent on the 
Treasury Board to ha,,e inve,-tigated the charges that had been made 
before coming to a ronclu~iun a,- to wht'ther or not t'.1e certificate 
f'hould be giyen. 

" The official:,; of the Department of Finance appear to have treated 

Mr. McC.irthy's letter as if it had never txisttd, and, in my opinion,-" 
:\Ir. McCarthy had writtrn on behalf of t bo~e who were objecting to 

the ii;ranting of the certificate, and when this ,:ettlement waf. arrived at, and 
the Departmeu,t was notified: of the compromise, thrn they treated, a:-1 the 
learned Chief Ju::;tice ::mys "Mr. McCarthy's letter as if it had never existed," 
and he goes on: 

" and, in my opinion, in that they erred, for although Mr. McCarthy 
on the 2nd November, 1906, wrote to the Minister informing him that 
the elaims made b:v his client,,; had been 'settled by their sub;:criptiom 
being taken up by some part:e-.; intere:::ted in the Bank and refunding 
the money paid by the individuals or returning the note;: ,vhich had 
been given and had withdrawn thr objections which he had made on 
behalf ,of his clients to the i;:rne of the certificates, ::\Ir. McCarthy did 
not in anv way intimate that the information he conveyed to the Minister 
as to the· way· in whirh the S'.?50,000 had been made up had been found 
to be inc8rrect." 

Herc, of course, ,ve have a similar state of thing::-. In 1906 a sort of 
undert.aking arrived at between the Wr:ctern Directors, and, on the strength of 
that, the inve;:tigation appears to have been abandoned. 

Then :,gain we have later on, in 1918, ~ir. Machaffie'.f' charge and his 
sub:;cquent recantation. 

Mr. McLA"CGHLIN: He did not recant the charge he put in. 
Mr. LAFLEL'R: No, no, but he recanted to the e>.tcnt of saying that the 

letter which he had intended to send to Sir Thomas White was based on hear-
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,-ay, but the original charge;; whi<'h ht' actually communicated in writing to 
Sir Thomas White were newr n•f•anted, no doubt about that, and it must have 
,;afo,fied your lordship that (•wn as to tl:r allegation,, which Wt're contained 
in that projected letttr to ~ir Thomas White l'c rrally had nothing to retract. 

I was rather arpazed to hear my fri(•nd, Sir Thomas White, suggest that 
I had bePn too tender with the witnc,-:-; brl'ausc I did not use vituperative 
hnguage, I suppose, and brram-e I did not treat him us perhaps some other 
rounsel might have felt disposed to treat him. He imaginrd that I had failed 
to bring out. all that there was in the incident. I thought that I had done 
enough, not being before a jury, to eonvinre your lordship as to what credit, 
if any, wa~ to be given to that witness in regard to his motives, or acting as 
he did. It docs not appear to me that even if his motives were not as dis­
intrrp,;;tcd as those of some others who made rPpre:-rntations, if those objectio_n,; 
were well founded, coming a,; tlwy diq from a trainer!. banker who knew all 
the affairs of the bank, they were entitled to consideration, and his recantation 
should not have hem allowed to have any effect on the investigation. 

That is all I have to say in regard to paragraph 3. 
I would ask your lord~hip now to turn your attention to the fourth ques­

t.ion, which asks: 

"What effect would an audit under Section 56A of the Bank Act, if 
made in 1915, 1916 and 1918, have hJ.d upon the conduct of the affairs 
of the said bank upon the po::iition oi the present depositor::;." 

Now. it is alway" more or less conjectural to answer a que-:'tion like that, 
hut Sir Thomas White admits that if he had known what he now knows, and 
what I submit could have been known i_f a proper external audit had been 
made, he would have prevented the bank ,from going on and taking money 
from the public. It is true that might pro!Jably not have helped the exitting 
depoc:.itors. It would have saved the subsequent depositors, and there would 
then have bren a conflict between the inkrest;; of the two classes of depositor;.;_ 
But, in any event, he is ronvinrrd that he could have done ~omething in thr 
way of having this bank taken over by another bank. 

The fifth quef'tion asks: 

"What was the financial l'Ondition of the "aid Home Bank of Canada 
in the years 1915, 1916 and 1918, re!'pectively, and what steps, if any, 
rould have been taken by the Government to save the situation." 

I am not going to dwell upon the fir,;t part of the question, the financial 
condition, because my friend, ~fr. Symington, will give you the references to 
that, generally "peaking, though there can be no controvrr::;y as to the rondition 
in tho--e years. The capital of the bank had bern practirally wiped out. Its 
re:5rrvr,; were gone, it "a,; not making any profits, the dividrnds were being 
paid out of imaginary profit-", fictitious profits, and it was in a very di--turbing 
condit.ion at, t.he time. 

,vhat steps, you are a-,kerl, could have been taken then to save the situa­
tion? Here aµ;ain we have the tt'stimony both of Sir Thomu~ White and of 
Sir Henry Drayton indicating what they eoulrl have done. They c::aid they 
were cnnfid-rnt that thrv could have drawn the at.tention of the Bankers' Ar::.,-o­
ciation to thi,; state of· affairs, and that some of the c::trong banks would have 
been induceri to take this bank over. 

It iR prrfodly true, as Sir Thomas White rontends, that.- if any drastic 
steps had brrn taken in wartime, and even in time of ;peace, by sending an 
audit.or from the Department into the bank to make an exterenal audit with­
out taking any precautions, the m::ults might have been disastrous, but. thnt 
is not what sug~rstc:: itself to any prudent man, what did suggrst itr::.elf to the 

• 

' 
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mind of Mr. Lash who had great experience in thci::e matters, who had been 
rnunsel for the Bankers' Af>,ociation for a number of years, and who was in 
the bank himself as Vice-Prt':-idcnt., nnd who had been a Director. What sug­
getted itself to him at once was that this matter should be dealt with by the 
Bankers' As5ociation, a friendly Association. It would have been a friendly 
inveRtigation and audit. It need have excited no comment, and, as Sir Thomas 
White says, when you get any of the officials of the Bankers' Association to 
look into the affairs of a bank the rumour goes around that you are going to 
)'lave a merger, and im;tcad of depreciating the stork of the bank it tends to 
raise the value of that stork. 

Now, that was not only the thought that occurred to Mr. Lash, it was 
the thought that occurred to Sir Thomas White, and in the earlier period of 
thc:::e conferences, and of this correspondence, it wa'l in'3istent upon them that 
thut was the natural and the obvious remedy, to lay the matter before the 
Bankers' A<><lociation. Quite truf', Sir Thomas says that the Bankers' Associa­
tion is an Association which has not the funds permitting it to acquire a bank. 
No one suggests that for a moment, but the Bankers' Association is one which 
contains represenatives of all the great banks in Canada, and when a weak 
bank is in a dangerous condition it is in the interest of the strong bank to 
prevent a financial crisis, even in peace time. 

It is incredible that this situation could not have been remedied, that steps 
could not have been taken instead of the fact, which was admitted, of allowing 
the bank to go on and trusting to the new management retrieving the disastrous 
condition which was then apparent, or which would have been apparent if any­
body but the Directors and their own auditor had really examined the accounts. 

I do not need to refer to what your lordship must have gathered during 
the course of the examination of the witnesses, and that is, that such irregularity, 
such a continuous practice as the passing of theRe fictitious profits, fictitious 
earnings to profit and loss arcount and using that in order to justify the declara­
tion of dividends. That was apparent on the face of the books. It did not 
need any valuation of securities. There were vital and very dangerous features 
which would have been disclosed at once on a mere examination of the books 
of the bank by any independent auditor. 

What I respectfully suggest is that this natural course, this obvious course; 
was not followed, simply because both Mr. Lash and Sir Thomas White yielded 
to the pressure of these Directors who did not desire any external audit to take 
place. And we know the result. We know the report, which was sent to Sir 
Thomas White on behalf of the Dirertors and signed by Mr. Haney, was 
wholly unreliable and contained a tissue of false returns. That being so, I 
think it is my du,ty to ask your lordship to consider whether it is desirable for 
you to do anything beyond finding these fact-, as I have put them to you. 

I do not think you need, at this stage of the inquiry, report on any further 
facts which might be opened by the enlargement of the ,,rope of the Commission 
because, as I say, we have not got any proof of any other representations being 
made to any other Ministers of Finance. Certainly Sir Henry Drayton did not 
have any brought to his notire otherwi,-;e than by his succeeding to his pre­
decessor in title, and getting the file of Sir Thomas White. It does not appear 
to me that there is anything in the evidence which jµ,,tifies you in finding that 
any other or further representations were made to Sir Thomas White's suc­
ressors. As to Sir Henry Drayton, as I was saying, all that he had was the 
file that was in the Department. As far as any MiniRter ooming into office is 
concerned, the matter had been practically a closed chapter, was ended, and 
we see that Sir Henry Drayton takes up the matter with Mr. Miller Lash owing 
to the illness and subsequent death of Mr. Z. A. Lash, in order to see if there 
is anything new, and nothing new appears to have been disclosed. And to all 
outward appearances, at that time the bank was going on. The dividends had 
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been raised rn<·res::ively from five per cent to ,-ix per cent, and from six per 
rl'nt to seven per rent, and there were no danger signals at the time whrn Sir 
Henry Drayt-On l'amr into office. He alwav,- fdt, and he says he felt, that this 
wa-.i a weak bank, and he mys that he told Mr. Fielding, in a ca..;ual way, that 
he po:::;:;ibly might hnvc to deal with the Home Bank as he had dealt with the 
Banque Nationale, but that is not of a nature to create any alarm. What ::,:;ir 
ll<.;nry Drayton had donr in conneetion with the Banque Nationale was merely 
to make advances to that bank under the provisions of the Finance Act, and 
that is what the Government does whenever one of the weaker banks drsire..; 
::ome financial a::sistance and is prepan•d to 11;ive the ncres;:;ary security for 
the advanrr. But there wa:c. nothing that was brought to the attention rither of 
Sir H1•nry Drayton's or still less to Mr. Fielding's notif'r, of any alarming con­
dition in the affairs of the Home Bank. 

I du not think your lord:-hip will have any difficulty in making findine;-­
to that eff< rt. That being :-o, I :-:ubmit that the wry , i('ious attaek which was 
mat!r on both of the suc1·r 0 :-ors of ::-iir Thoma, "-ThitP i:; uttrrly unproved, and 
that t}wn• wa,: no ju~tifieation for the a--~·•ri 'on that thPy had brcn gros,:ly 
remi-..; in their duty, and had participatecl witt1 tLt> Dircr·tor:- in writing this 
ldtPr. 

A"' t0 Sir T:10ma,: White: I would only ,ay this: I think we must ac4uit 
Sir Thomas White o' any rrmi~~nr::;s and want of activity in dealing with tlw 
objections and rl'~m---< nbtions whiri; \Yere made to him. On the t:ontrary. 
he appears to h·wt• ,hown a mo,t remarkable ::tf'tiv:ty in ;;pite of the enormou;; 
Ina,! he had tu ('arry in ('onncc-tion with hi:- war \\ ork, and I quite aj!ree that 
he rrrtainly d~votcrl. a gre;,t dPal of ti~c, and a great clral of attention, and 
a gred deal of thou<1;Lt to thi.5 matter, whi('h, after all, w:1::: a small matter in 
comparison with thP wry ;:rrious intrre:::t:3 that were oceupying the attcnt:on 
of him,,elf and bi,.; eolleague;: at the time. 

At most I rnppo:-:r it c·ould be '-aid that he 1it,d mi~plac Pr! ninfideme in mm 
who h'1d clerrived him, and that Le may Lave eommitt( ,1 an rrror of judµ;mc,nt 
in allowing an invc:atigation to L1kP place from the in:aide in,tead of havinp­
the Banker-,.' A~tioeiahon cundurt the investigation as he origanally de,:irecl 
and a:' Mr. La:-h al-o orip:inally del"ired. I tl11nk thut is all that can be ;;aid 
in rc.1::trd to any charge of negligence, but I dll not rune civc t bat it is your 
lonl,:hip's duty to pasti upon tlut pnint. Your lorcicLp rnn very properly, 
without criticising the Mini::,ter's P-Xt>rr' ,;p of Li,- di::::crction, find all the fart~ 
that are ncce:::,ary to enable either Par!iamcnt or the Banking Committee to 
rnmc to a ronclu,-ion on the ,ubje<'t'. 

And your lord,d1ip· will notiee the you are not obligrd to go any furthn 11 

than that. It i,.; true tint in the Commif:3ion appointing you you are required 
ancl dire,-ted to report to the Governor-Grneral-in-Council the rc,:ult of your 1 
im·estiiration together with the evidenre Liken before you and any opinion you 
may ,;:re fit to expre,;:s thereon. There is no compub.ion at all, and it ocrurred 
to me that perhap;: it might a;:'-i~t your lord:'l,ip to know if there were any 
precedents at all. Well thr onlv precedent we liave bren able to find is thi,; 
case of the Farmer,-' Bank, wl,Pre a ,imilar elaim was prP~rnterl,1 which in 
that case wa,; basl'd on the, allrged rn gligrnrr of thr Department of Finance. 
You will find on looking through thi-, report by Chief Justirr ~Icredith that 
he confined him:arlf to making findmirs upon the fact'l, and ab:atained from 
exprf', ,ing any opinion a~ to the rnnduct of the Mini,:tt:r in the (•xerci:;e of 
such di,:rretion as the Act ronft.rred upon him. And he al-o ab,-h1ined rxpresc;ly 
from making any recommendation a, to a compa,-~innate t llowance being 
made to the depositor--. I do not know what your lord-:hip's intention;: may be 
in that regard, but I may ~fly that in the e:.1-;e of the Farmer:-' Bank the Hou,-;e 
of Commons pa:5~ed nn inc..l1·m11ity "Bill on the ground that a moral liability 
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had resu!ted from the Governrncnt'c; neg!crt. The mattC'f afterward came up 
in the Srnatc and the Senate rrjrrt-cd the bill. Now in spite o;, all the 
endec1vours that we have made to find other precedentf' that is the only one 
we have found. I :auppose I nrt~d hardly cite authority to your lord"hip to 
:;:'.1y that even if grosf' ncgligrnce on the part of the Crown's officer:; and :,:ervants 
were e"tabfohed, there can be no liability for tort. Ever since the ea~e of the 
Vif'count of Canterbury again,-t the Attorney-General in 1843 (12 Law Jpurnal, 
Chancery, 281) that doctrine has been constantly followed and applied. As 
you will recollert that wa" an action on a petition of right for damage,; 
suffered 1~y the petitioner for injury to his property while he was Speaker of 
the House of Commons. When the· Hou,;cs of Parliament were burnt down 
the property of the Speaker in his chambers was de::itroyerl, a-, he allege l through 
the negligence of the Crown ~crvants. There is a long line of cases in our 
own Court::;, our Supreme Court a::; you will remember in the case of Queen 
v:,; ::\foFarlane 7 S.C., 216' and Queen vs lVIcLeod 7 $.C., 1. The only exception 
of cour:,e is where the Stat,ute ibclf-impo:::e-, liability on the Crown, for instancE: 
in the .cac;c of ac('idcnt!'; on public worb:. Tlwre is a ~tatutc which creates tLc 
Exchequer Court and give:" certain powers to that Court. That statute ha,, 
been held to create a statutory right oi indemnity aµ;:lin~t the Crown for 
torts tommittcd by scrvantf' of the Crown, but othcrwifoe there is no recour,:e. 
Ii there is ,any recourse at all it is against the officers of the Crown when they 
have negJeeted or rcfuf'Pd to perform a statutory duty. You find an examplt· 
of that in the case of Fulton v. Norton, 1908•appeal ca-ies, 451. That ii:i a case 
whrre the Provincial S;'rrc-tary had foiled and refuf'ed to Hubmit to the Lieut­
Governor-in-Counril a-i he ,val:\ bound to do under the statute a petition of 
right which claimed damage-; from the Government. of British Columbia and it 
wa,-; he!d that he was obliged by the statute to buhmit this, and having failed 
to do that he would be per-anally liable in damages, but there was no claim 
against the Crown. And there never is unless it is established by statute, and 
here of course there is none. • 

So that, although some learned rnun:::el seemed to say that they had a rase 
of negligence against the Crown by reason of the ill-timed action or misguided 
action of one of the Mini,,tcrs, anrl ina<'tion of the other h,o Mini::ters, it if' 
clear that they could not have any legal remedy. The que.-;tion will be for 
Parliament to decide whether they have any moral claim. It is for your 
lordship to ;:ay whether you care or t!iink it praprr to cxprC'ss an opinion an,l 
make any recommendation on that point. As I said I do not think you arc 
obli!,!;ed to do so, and I think the re,;ponsibihty mu::ot ultimately rest with 
Parliament if any bill of indemnity i,, to be pa:---C'cl to relieve the <lepositorc;. 

I will not take any more of your lordship's time. My friend Mr. Syming­
ton will supplement my ob::;ervation". 

I have also, like the other counsel, to thank you for your unfailing courtesy 
and for the great patience with which you have li,;tenc<l to this prolonged cai:\e 
I am glad to say that while my friends the counsel for the depositor,; and 
counsel for the shareholderA cannot :oee eye to eye with me, there have been 
no unpleasant incidents in our intrrcourse, and that thry have facilitated u., 
as we have endeavoured to facilitate them, in getting at the real facts of thi~ 
rase. 

ARGUMEXT BY MR. SYMINGTON, K.C. 

May it please your lordship, I wish to associate myself with Mr. Lafleur's 
remark-; in respect to any attacks which have been made upon anybody in thi., 
Comtnissinn. A peru,al of the Commission and of the Orders in Council leaws 
the task imposed upon your lordship and on counsel in this investigation a 
comparatively simple one. It is to answer questions and, if you deem it advis-
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able, to give an opmion. No eharges were made agaiIJ~t any individual what­
,;oewr, and I mu,:t "a~, that I <lirl frel very mw:h like interfering;, but did not, 
when certain peoph· wnc dtaelu-d here before thi:-' Commi::sion in a way which 
I think was ab:c:, ,lutelv unju~tifietl, not only by the fact that they were not 
repre:oented, but the fact that the cvidrncl' did not in any way justify it. 

I propo:--l' to afsi:,t your lordship if I ran in tl:e con,;ideration of the ques­
tion~ whieh have bpen put to you. I refer to pagt· 5, the fir,.t que,.tion asked is: 

"l. Whether, in foe ymin, 1915, 1916 and 1918 reprefentations were 
made to the Department of Finance of the Dominion of Canada re~pect­
ing the condition of the Home Bank of Canada, and, if ;;o, what repre­
,;entations were so made?" 

The que--tion rc1-olve;; it~elf intu two branrlw:, and thrc-c subhl'ack Taking 
the first one, which I would call IA, it would be whether reprc-cnt:.ttion:,; were 
made in 1915,, and I think we are all on eommon ground that there is no 
evidence that there wrre any reprr~l'ntations made in 1915, and therefore the· 
an,;wcr to that qm•stion would be, No. 

Similarly, lB, wlwther there were rrpre~entntion~ made in 1916, obviously 
the answer must be, Ye:-'. Reprr:-rnbtiorn; were made to the Government in 
the month of .January, 1916. Exbibits No:5. 2 to 42 inclusivr on pag0;; 12 to 
75 of the re,·ord C'ompri-P:- a file submitted iby .J arnf'!'; Fisher, K.C. of "Winnipeg 
acting on bc•half of the three Weskrn Directors of the bank, Me,:srs. Crerar, 
Per~~c and Kennedy, to Sir Thonms White, ~1inifter of Finance on the 22nd 
.January, 1916, and furni,h cnnrlu5ive evidence of the corr.ect an,;wer to that 
qm·-,tion. If your lord,-hip ":mt-; e,·idenrP tiiat ~ir Thoma-; got thrm, exhibit 
N"o. 43 on page 75; No. 44 on pagp 76; and No. 45 on page 76, are acknowledg­
ment-; that ti"· \ Iini-:tpr reeeiwd tho,:e rPpre-,entations. 

,Vhilr I tLink tliat eowr:- the re-presentations antiripaterl in the quec.:tion, 
non the les,- tho-:e repre-entations led to certain further information hcin,g 
rereived in the rorrrspondenre which aro-:e out of them. Exhibits Nos. 43 to 
63, on pap:rs 75 to 109 of the record show the rorre,;pondence in the Department 
in connertion with tho,:;c repref'entations containPrl in Exhibits 2 t-0 42. Those 
exhibits and page" rover ·what was in the public file in the Department of 
F;n,:rnce. Exhibit,i ~os. 68 to 87 on pages 159 to 177 of the record cover the 
Exhibitc.: protlurecl b:v ~ir Thomas White from his own file, showing the addi­
tional rorrespondenee arising out of those representations. 

The nl'xt branch is IC, whether repre,:entations were made in 1918; that 
is answered by Exhibits Nos. 88 to 177 whirh show t-hat repre<,entations as to 
the Home Bank were made by a Mr. Machaffie, late as,;istant to the President, 
to Rir Thoma-, White under clat.e of Augu-:;t 29th, 1918. Exhibit No. 89 on page 
179 is an acknowledgment of the rPceipt of those representations by the Min­
ister. Exhibit X os 90 to 109 on page-; 179 to 208 of the record show the cor­
rei;pondrnce aril"ing out of the rrprP:-Pntation<J contained in Exhibit No. 88. 

Exhibits Nos 64 and 65 on pagr-s 118 to 127 and 141 to 153 produced by 
.-:ir Hrnry Drayton from his pi;iYatP file show the sub,;equent rorre-:pondence 
which in a sen.,e might be i:mid to have ari"en out of both complaint,,, because 
both were before Sir Henry Drayton. 

Rn tLr anqwer to nart 1 of the qucl"tions would be as to 1915, No; as to 
1916, Yrs; anrl as tn 1918, Yes. 

The ::;ccond part of the que~tion i-,: What rcprei,entution;; were so made. 
That is a more difficult qut>'-'tion. In 1916-we can now eliminate 1915 through­
out-Exhibit Ko. 5 on page 17, is the general memorandum giving the Minister 
a ,;hort summary by the "' estern DirE'rtors of the position of that bank. That 
memorandum ha,; brt'll rnvered pretty thoroughly by counsel for the depositors 
anrl I do not propo,:P to takP up timP analyzing it for your lordship, but rather 
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will I summarize in the end what seem to me to be the reriresentations which 
were made throughout the whole correspondence. But I give these individual 
references as being the more important ones. 

Exhibit No. 2 on page 12 is another memorandum submitted at that time 
to the Minister, it is marked "Re Prudential Trust loan." It is a memorandum 
in connection with that loan and is important apart altogether from the size 
of the transaction because it di1crlcses rertain actions wnich, on analysis, would 
perhaps have surprised most bankers to learn that things of that character 
were carried on in the bank. 

Exhibits Nos. 6 and 7 on pages 19 and 20 set forth some very extraordinary 
procedure with regard to this loan, and exhibit No. 8 on page 22 immediately 
following, shows the appointment of Mr. Barnard to a Direetorship in spite of 
the farts ~et forth in that mrmorandum. 

Exhibit No. 9 on page 23 shows the protest of the Western Directors against 
such procedure. 

Exhibit ~o. 10 is rather an important letter written by Mr. Peri-sr which 
diRcusses the general position of the management of that bank: at some length 
and di"closes the interior difficulties and objectionable featurrs in detail. 

· Exhibit No. 35 on page 59 shows the Frost indebte1lnrf's of one and three 
quarter million doll:m,. 

There are altogether some 42 exhibits there, but I have only given refrrenl'es 
to the important ones. I submit that the perusal of the whole file show~ the fol­
lowing reprrsrntations were made, and answer the question as to what represen-
tations were made in 1916. The representations showed: ' 

(1) That the paid up capital of the bank was about $2,000,000 and that 
it had four yery questionable· accounts of a doubtful and frozen character 
amounting to $4,800,000. 

(2) Misrepresentation· by the management to the Directors. 
(3) Inability of the Directors to get relial)le information. 
(4) The desire of the Western Director-: to Recure a change of management.. 
(5) The apparent reluctance of the Ea1-tern Directors to any change in 

management. 
(6) Latk of confidence on the part of the Western Directors in the Eastern 

Directors and management. 
(7) Unreliability of statements issuing from the General Manager's office. 
(8) l'nsatisfactory settlement of large accounts without consultation with 

the Western Dirertors. 
(9) Appointment of new Directors without consultation with or knowl­

eage of the W e~tern Directors. 
(10) The ~nnual return~ were made to the government without oeing sub­

mitted to the Western Directors. 
(11) There was' no inspection of the Main Office. 
(12) That a full investigation ought to be made into the affairs of the bank 

generally by a special Auditor appointed by the Department.. 

I think thosr summarize the representations which were madr to the Min­
ister of F:nanre in 1916: 

Then with respert to what representations were made in 1918, that involved 
only an analysis of Exhibit No. 88 on page 178: 

(1) That refers to the previous repreRc•nt.ation,; made by Mr. Fisher as 
solicitor for the Western Dirertors, that is it recalled what I have set forth to 
you now to the mind of the Minister. 

(2) It point,; out that the hoped for ,ale of the British Columbia timber 
limits had not taken place. 

a 
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(3) That the dividend.,; for 1916 and 1917 were ba:;Pd on tlit· addition of 
unp.tid interest to doubtful al'l uunts, and that thirty plT cent more than the 
dividend rame from the Fro:::t ai,·ount alone. 

( 41 That the birnk wa.-; f'peeulating in a "hip building indu,try on a profit 
sharinµ; ba..;is with l l'rbin Direetors. 

(5) That the 1918 dividend wa,- ba-Pd on ~ueh spP1·ulative profit. 
lfi) The aggregateori,k of tht publil· wa,, mueh greatl-r in 1918 Lan when 

.:\Ir. Fi~hcr intrrviewd the ~lini:;ter in 1916. 
( 7) That dividc·mls fur thn•e y<•:1rs were furni:;hed by the innea:::e of de-

po:-;1t.~. I 
\8) That tl:r ,vriting up of the Fro:-t aeeount would an·ount fur the whole 

rnp;Ld of tl:C' bank. 
(9) Tirnt ~rrtion 153 of the Bank Act, that is the provision as tu the re­

turn-:, wa-- bPing violatC'd. 
( 10) Tk1t thr Auditor was incapable. 
(11) That important matters wrrn ronrrnlrd from the Board an,! su the 

prutt>rtinn contemplab•rl by ~eetion 58 of the Bank Act was lacking. 
(12) That transtiction:5 in which thr Pre,:ident and his frirnd-; had a per­

,:on;.11 int.t•rP,t wne bec·oming rather frequent, and in ·,,ume case~, disa-;trous. 
113) That import.mt information was being withheld from Mr. La:-h. 
(14) That tliP arrangt ment:- prrviou:aly made by the ::.\lini~tt>r with 

l\lt•~. re;. H::nc~· and La;;h du not afford t!w publie an adequate mea-,ure of 
protert ion. 

I am not suge;e:.:ting that all tho,c are trur, I am -:imrly reeiting to you 
what ;ct-m to mr to be the reprP-entations whil'h were made, and an answer 
tu the que,;:t10n: "\Vhat repre,entation;; were :-o made?" 

Cuming tlw11 to qm,-.tion ~o. 2: 

"Whether, if rnch representations were made, a state of affairs wa-; 
n•waid l'Onrnning the rendition of the to-aid bank 1:-ud1 as would have 
ju:otified an invectigaLon unr!n the power,- conferred upon the Mini:;ter 
of Finance by Sretion 58A of the Bank Act." 

:.\Ir. Lafkur ha:-- dP:,lt with the position he t:.tke:;, wit 1
1 n·:oprd to that que'-'­

tion and i:;ir Thoma;; Whitr'-: objedion from a legal standpoint. May I say 
that I entirely :::gre<' with Sir Thoma~',., statement of the law, but that in my 
.i udgmt>nt that qup,-tion i..; not a qm;,,tinn whil'h i:- c~drnlated to hold any Min­
ister of the Crown responsible to anybody but Parliamrnt. It is not a que:,;­
tion which of nen•,-.-:ity eithrr condemn-> or apprai,:r~,- Sir Thoma,-, ·white, it 
i,;, whether there were repre;;ent.1tions whieh would have justified him or any 
othrr l\1ini.;;ter in making an independc·nt invr"tigation. 1 

Now you haYe in the -ummary whid1 I have ju-t given in an,-.wer to the 
quet'tion "\Vhat representations were made," the information to dral with that, 
but I think it i:,; u"c,ful to rrfer to l'<'rtain exliibib as to the d'f,•1·t t.he repre­
sentations had on the mind of the :\iin:"t,rr at the time. Mr. Lafleur ha~ given 
the refrrrnrr:- in thr rvidenee to ::--ir Thomas \Yhitr's answers as to what he 
did, whi<"l1 rerhap:o summar;zr pn tty WPli tlH' infiuen<•e:-; upon his mind, still 
that evidenee was given some~year;; after the fact. 

Now with respr('t to the 1916 rrpm-rntations, Exhibit No. 43 on page 75, 
being a lettrr from ~ir Thoma,-, Whitr tn J amrs :\b-:on, wa,; the fir,-t and im­
mPdiate rraetion made upon his mind wlwn he rrad thu,:e rrprr'-Pntation,-. H £! im­
mediatelv called for information under Srction 113 of the Bank Act with re­
,:prrt to the three largest aerounts whirh had be rn namrd in the mrmorandum 
pre:-ented by Mr. Fisher. In ot'.1er words hr immediately reacted in the way 
I think PYen at this period of time one would judge his mind would reaet, he 
,:tarterl in and l'allerl for return-; under c,rrtion 113, whieh is a return from the 
Board, virtually to make the Board responsible. Your lordship understandc; 
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the theory of t'.1e Bank Act, to make them responsible for returns made to a 
:Viinister, that those returns must be correct or the punishment provided in the 
Act falls upon them. 

He abo reacted as shown by Exhibit No. 46 on page 78t by writing to the 
Auditur of the bank, ~1r. Jones, and calling upon him under Section 58A to 
em1uirc into the accounts mentioned in his letter to l\1r. 11ason tRe General 
i\lanagcr, r,nd to report to him in all Proper detail. 

Tho,oe were the immediate reactions upon t:lir Thomas White's mind of the 
representations made in 1916. Those were the reactions which the Bank Act 
apparently contemplated, and he dealt, with it under the two sections of the 
Act ,vhich gave him the power to do so, and at that moment and up to that 
time nobody could suggest that Sir Thomas White had not <lone exactly what 
lie :-liould have done; with this possible exception, and this is not a matter of 
criticism, because it is a matter: of di,:cret.ion; that at that time in any event 
he wrote to the Bank's Auditor although lie had discretion under the section to 
select some other auditor . 

. _. Now I will recall that immediately General Mason received that letter he 
wrote and asked Sir Thomas White if he was to have the thirty days in which 
to make thesr, returns. Exhibit Xo. 45, page 77, indicates that Sir Thomas 
recognized the seriousness of the situation, becau:se he would not limit himself 
to giving him the thirty days, he says• that the charges are so serious that: 

"I think it advi"able that your reply should be completed and for­
warded at as early a date as pos,;-ible. Your Board may be able to re­
port to me upon one or more of the accounts in question at an earlier 
date than would be po,,.,;ible in the case of other or others." 

So that it would seem upon the exhibits produced from that time, that 
there had been produced upon Sir Thomas's mind a realization of the very 
serious situation which had arisen. through the Directors of the bank doing 
something which as far as I know is unheard of in the history of banking in 
this country, bringing to the attention of the Minister of Finance complaints 
and fears with respect to their own institution. 

Then we have Exhibit Xo. 48 on page 79, letter from Sir Thomas White 
to Mr. Fioher acknowledging receipt of his communication and pointing out 
that he has drawn to the attention of the President and the Auditor of the 
bank "The accounts about which I understand fro1;0 you your clients were 
principally conrerned, namely, the Prudential Trust Company account, the 
A. C. Frost & Company account, and the Pellatt accounts, requesting detaile1l 
information and explanation.1

' 

Then we have Exhibit No. 54 on page 86, which was an answer to a letter 
from Mr. Fisher in which he had pointed out that he had had a telegram from 
Mr. Lash suggesting that there should not be this outside audit, and that if the 
Winniprg Directors would withdraw their objeetion he could probably arrangP 
it. Sir Thomas wrote to Mr. Fisher on that subject saying: 

"The position I have taken with ::\ir. Lash is that I desire the state­
ment which I have asked for on the complaint lodged by you on behalf 

• of the We,:tcrn Directors. It does not appear to me that 1 would be 
justified in foregoing my request for such information on the ground 
that the Board is now in harmony. You make certain definite, explicit 
charges which I conceived it my duty to investigate. When I receive 
the report in those matters from the Home Bank from Mr. Lash I shall 
have to determine the course proper for me to take." 

So that letter explain-; what Sir Thomas had in mind; here were definite, 
specific charges and he calls upon the Bank under Section 113, and upon the 
Auditor under Section 56A to furnish him with certain information, "and 
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irrespective of what anybody think,:; or sugge::h I will come to a conclusion 
wh0n I have got the information a,- to what i::; the proper thing for me to do." 

Exhibit No. 56 on page 87 is a lett!'r to Mr. La~h from Sir Thoma,-, White, 
and it indicates that prcs,:;ure wa':l bemg brought to brar upon Sir Thoma,- by 
Mr. Lash and otherti to delay the matter pending the valuation of < Prtrtin 
a1·1·ount-- or sernritie:., as oppo::;cd to any audit. He sugqesh to Mr. La,.:h that 
even though those valuations should be satisfactory he doe::; not know that 
he ought to accept tb,m, and he feels ·that he mmt at an early date dr:iw the 
matter to the attention of the Bankers' A~50ciation, as the Banker::;' As;..uciation 
rould do this very thoroughly, meaning, thi::; is really an investigation into 
the affairs, a valuation as opposed to an audit, and they could arrange to do 
this very thoroughly and much more efficiently than any official I could name 
for that purpose. We can follow Sir Thomas White's mind very clearly down 
to that point. 

Then Exhibit No. 70 on page 160, being a letter of the 14th February, 1916. 
from Mr. Lash to Sir Thomas \Yhite in which he says (162)-

"I felt satisfied that you would prefer not to have the statements 
sent to you in the meantime. Tllf'y would only cmbarra~s you bernu,-c 
you could form no opinion a,, to your duty without further investigation 
and that you would hu.ve to deride what sort of further inve~tigation 
should b.ke place. There is no doubt in my mind that if we get a new 
and efficient man to look into the whole situation he will be able to do 
it thoroughly without the result which would neces:oarily follow if the 
investigation were ordered by you. I mean by this that the matter would 
not become a public comment." 

Now there apparently is the germ of wl1at subsequently governe,i the 
actions of all parties in th is invrstigat.ion. If they got a good man it could be 
satisf:wtorily done from the inside without the public comment and the po.-~ible 
re;::ult'l which would come to the bank if it berame a mattrr of public <·omment. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: In that letter of the 29th Mr. Lash says: 

"I have always thought that the invrstigation should be by an out­
-:ide competent per,-on who would be quite free from any, interference 
by the prr;,rnt management or Board." 
• I 

Mr. SYMINGTON: tY cs, quite so, but what I am pointing out is that in 
Exhibit 70 there is a:; I i:,ee it, no matter what was ,aid ·in the meantime, the 
germ whirh controlled the actions of the Minister and the Directors and Mr. 
Lash. Because if you follow it through, Exhibit No. 71 being Sir Thoma'<·s 
answer to that Exhibit No. 70, where that germ as I find it first appears, Sir 
Thomas demurs to some extent, he says: 

"The position is that I have been made aware by the Winnipeg 
Dirertors of a certain condition which is most disturbing. H does not 
appear to me that I would be ju'ltified in sbying enquiry bPr.ause t.he 
Winnipeg DirertorR may ask me to suspend action. The real question 
is whether the bank, having regard to the condition whieh will he dis­
closed by the statements should be allowed to continue bu<;inr!'S with the 
public. I i::hall be glad, therefore, if you will send me the statement:o." 

He received the statemrnt<;, apparently being handed to him by Mr. La,:;h 
in Ottawa. Following that the first suggestion made to Mr. Lash is to do nothing 
until he gets the Pellatt securitie::; in shape, because that is going to improve 
the condit.ion of the bank. Then follows the sugge<;tion that they ehould await 
the return of Mr. Haney and Mr. Crerar from their British Columbia trip, 
ending with Sir ThomaR wa.iting for that return, the meeting of the Directors 
which as you remember, lasted three days in Toronto, March 16th, 17th and 
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18th, followed by the trip to Ottawa of Mr. Haney and Mr. Lash, they presenting the letter from Mr. Crerar which they had got from him stating that owing to the change in management matters had improved and he thought it could be handled from the inside. "at this juncture" is the languag;e of the letter. Apparently with that letter, and armed with the minutes of the meetings Mr. La~h and Mr. Haney were ahle to persuade Sir Thoma'> White, and they did persuade him in my judgment, that this bank could pull through, could better its position, was in good hands, and therefore he should not make an int5pertion as had been originally suggested by the Western Directors. In any event, as far as one can read from the correspondence a long time afterward, that seems to have been the workings of Sir Thomas's mind at that time. 
That of course is not required in order for you to answer this question, I have gone through it only as a5sistance to your lordship in considering whether the representations would have iustified it, in trying to show you what passed through this man's mind at the time. 
Now the situation in 1918, in answer to the second part of that question; I think your lordship must recognize the much more serious character of· the representations in 1918 than in 1916. Became not only does it recall to the Minister's mind the very r,erious representations made in 1916, but it discloses the all-material fact that the Minister h,ad been deceived, that the promises were not being rarried out, and that certain very objectionable features, name­ly the paying of dividends out of unearned interest, had been at this date in any event establishe~ even though it had not been at the previous time. 
Sir Thomas seemed to take that representation very seriously, as shown by Exhibit No. 90 on page 179. His immediate reaction to that letter was his letter to Mr. Lash enclosing copy of the letter received from Mr. Machaffie. 

"I shall be glad if you will take the matter up with the Board of Directors and have a report prepared dealing with the several charges made. I regard the matter as of the utmost public importance, and it is my intention to have a thorough investigation made through the Bankers Association or otherwise. Before taking this Ftep, however, I 
wish to have a reply from Mr. Haney and his Board." 

That was how it had impressed Sir Thomas's mind before he left on his western trip and before he had some corre'lpondence with Mr. Lash. 
As a re"lult of his trip the accounts which he received in answer to that were not received until January 29th following. I only mention it at this stage to ,indicate how the reprc,-entat:ons affertr•d the mind of th~ Minister at the moment. The answer to the question will Ltrgely come from the perusal of the representations which were made, upon them and your lordship's inter­pretat.ion of them must depend the answer to question No. 2. 
Qmistinn No. 3; 

""\Vhat action, if any, wa,; taken by the t.hcn ~iinister of Finance upon such repret59ntations as may have been made?" 

1916 being the first representations. Exhibit No. 43, page 75, called for information from the General Manager under Section 113 of the Bank Act; Exhibit No. 46 on page 78, ·called for information from the bank's Auditor under Section 56A. Exhibit No. 68 on page 159, shows his interview with Messrs. Haney and Barnard; Exhibit Xo. 70 on page 160, is a long l<.:ttcr from Mr. LaRh in an-iwer to an inquiry from Sir Thomas, setting forth very material informa­
tion to the Minister, from Mr. Lash, in which he Eiay'3 that he has mid some time ago that the general managPment was woefully defective; he learnc'd that the Winnipeg Dirc•ctor,; .were unable to obtain from the manugcment sufficient information to deal with the account:,; he expressed to Mr. Fisher his opinion 
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abuut the managenwnt and tnlrl him that unk-.o n!.'\V management wa-; introduced 

the po~itiun of the bank would hc<"ume 111ore complieatul and might · bl'come 

hop ·ll''-'", and ,-;o on. That i,-; a very long kttcr, and apparently at that stage a 

very frank kt tl'r :--ctting furth to thC' ;\liniskr an answer to the inquirir,; he 

hnd marle. Exhibit 71 i::. his an,wer to thd. 
Fxhib:t. 52, page 81, i,-; "')me infurmati,m he got fn,m :\Ir. Fisher. 

l~xhibit 53, pngt> 83, i,, in formation from ;\fr. Fi,-hl·r. 

Exhibit 55, page 86, a letter frnm ~ir Thomas \Yhite to :\Ir. Fi,-lwr. 

Thl n Exhihit 63, pag;r 93 roni ·,in:-- statement-. whirh wrre obtairn•rl from 

tht> b«nk in an--,,·rr to the d('mand under ,:c('tion 113. 

Exh1oit 55, pt:!!t' 87, i,- ratlll'r important, I think, berau;,c after r!.'rciving 

!110:--r memoranrb from the R,,ard, ·whi<'11 tlw ::\lini-,t!'r cays apprar to he com­

p11fr :n diar:1c·tl·r hP i,- still not ~ati,-ficd. He says: (Ex. 55. pagr 87 line 9l: 

" You will, I am sure, undrn-tand that the ~ituation is a rather 

delicate one and th:it it is impurtant not to make a mi,-take in judg­

ment either on the onr side or the otlwr. If the bank i,; ,-ound it would 

he advi-:ablc• in the publi1 interc,-t that it o-hould be allowerl to continue 

in bu,:irn•,-,-. If, on the otlll'r hand, it i:; not ;;;o]nnt the que:,,tion arist>-; as 

to allowing it to continue." 
'·Yr.;;ter1by in an,-wer to my rrrent rcquc:;t for information, I 

received memoranda upon th!.' Pellatt and Pellatt, A. C. Fro"t Company, 

and Prudt·ntial Trust Company account,-. The,-e memor9,nda appear to 

he fairly tomplcte in chaiackr, but, of ('QUi::ae, the principal qur,;tion 

which arise8 is that of the Yaluc of the rollateral hrld for adv::mrr,: marlc. 

I unrler;-;tand that :'.\Ic,--srs. Ham•:v and Crcrar have been appointed a 

spc,·i.al Committcr to procerd to Briti"h Columbia for the purpo--e of 

making an investigation respecting the timber limit5." and >'O on. 

So that even after thr Mini:;;ter had received the return under tirrtion 113, he 

was still in a ,:tate of doubt as to what he should do. 

J'xhibit 59, page 89; not having rcceivrrl any an..;wrr from the auditor undC'r 

56A, l:e now writes to the auditor, not in--isting upon his previous request, but he 

a,:k,; l1im for a drtailed statement f'howing advance-;, repayments, and interest 

charges on the A. C. Frost Company account. 

"The We::;tern members of the Board have thought it dE~irable that I 

should obtain this information." 

Exhibit 72, page 163 is a letter to Rir Thomas from Mr. Lash, undn date 

Fcl,niary 29th, 1916, nnd which sl1ows tlw working,:, a'l it seems to me, of this; 

germ about the new manager, becauf'e at that date ~1r. Lash has more or lP,;s 

thrown up his hands as to being able to Eerure a competent person who could 

undertake the general management, without first fully inve::;tigating the position. 

He ,-ays: 

"I have always thought that the invr,:tigation should be by an out­

side competent person who would be quite free from any interference by 

the pre;;ent management or Board. The best rourse may be to consult the 

Bankers' A-,sociation with reference to the pero1on who"is to make the in­

vestigation, as it might be important that the Association should feel able 

to rely upon his report, if their assi,-tanre were a,-kcd, in,;tead of having 

to get a furth~ report from their own nominee." 

Apparently Mr. Lash was working then upon the theory of getting an out­

l-<ide man who would make the invrRtigation and who would brcome the general 

manager. He sayo1, I cannot find a man anp ~he:r:ef?re w~ h3:d be~ter a-,k the 

Bankers' Association to suggest a man, because 1f his mve,,,t1gat10n d1::;close8 that 

t 
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we cannot go on and it must be taken over, there need not to be two investigations, 
because this man will be one in whom the Bankers' Association will have con­
fidence. 

Then there is a reply to that at page 165, in Exhibit 73. 
Exhibit 61, pages 90 and 91, contains the r:tatements which the Minister 

received from Mr. Jones in answer to his demand for particull'trs or details of the 
Frost account. It apparently shows correctly the position of that account. 
There would seem to be no dispute, because there is nothing credited at all, it 
is shown that the interest is charged up, and charged in the balance of the 
account. The auditor, so far as that report is concerned, seems to have given 
all the information that could poRsibly be got in figures; showing the advances 
when made, the interest, all of which had been added, and credits practically 
nil. 

Then there is Exhibit 73 at page 165, and Exhibit 74 at pp. 165 and also 
167. 

Exhibit 76, at pp. 167 and 168. 
• I am giving you these purely to show what the Minister did, because that. 

is what you are asked to reply. I will summarize them afterwards. 
Exhibit 79, Page 169, is a letter to Sir ThomaR, from Mr. Lash on March 

20th, 1916, where he sets forth for the Minister's information, what he and the 
management had done to meet the situation, leading up to the interview which 
they subRequently had, and the results of which are set fort,h at length in ExhiLit 
83 at page 172. In other words, Mr. Lash on March 20th wrote Sir Thomas 
and told him what had been done at the Directors' meeting, the changes in 
;management, the improvement in certain securities, as apparently a preparation 
for the visit on March 22nd, to the Minister; and in Exhibit 83, page 172 you 
will find a memorandum signed by Mr. Lash and concurred in by Mr. Haney 
and apparently concurred in by Sir Thomas, as shown by his answer in Exhibit 
84, setting forth in detail what occurred at that interview. The result was 
that Sir Thomas decided, rightly or wrongly, to give the new management, as it 
was termed Mr. Haney and Mr. Machaffie, a chance to bring the bank to a 
better position. 

Now all those documents, my lord, ,it seems to me may be briefly summar­
ized in am,wer to the question "What did the Minister do?" in this way: that 
the Mini5ter at first determined to act strictly in accordance with the Bank Act 
under ·section 56A and section 113. Secondly, that after getting these reports 
,he decided that the Bankers A~-,ociution should be called irl to make a report, 
,on the ground that apart from an auditor's statement, some investigation or 
valuation was necessary. That Mr. Lash, representing the bank, was in agree­
ment at fir~t with that proposed method of <leuling with the situation, and 
·then changed his mind; that ~Ir. Lash then procured a delay in any steps being 
taken pending the securing of the Pellatt loan and pending reports upon the 
properties in B. C. and New Orlean'>, that Mr. Lash and the Eastern Directors 
persuaded Mr. Crerar first that an out-,ide· audit would mean closing the bank's 
door§, and that otherwise the bank: could pull through. That the report on the 
valuation of the holdingR did show an improvement and the pos~ibility of an 
,eventual realization. Crerar and Haney, re the West; Haney, New Orleans; 
and Lash, re the Pellatt. That Mr. Lash strongly recommended Mr. Haney; 
that Haney was taking hold vigorously; that Machaffie had been brought from 
Winnipeg, a trained banker, in whom, the Western Directors had confidence. 
That General Mason had been eliminated. That Sir Thomas and Mr. Crerar 
had great confidence in Mr. Lash. That all these things were brought to the 
attention of first, Mr. Crerar and then Sir Thomas, and having persuaded Mr. 
Crerar, and having apparently given evidence of a desire and a determination 
to handle this bank properly, that Sir Thomas was induced to hold his hand 

79476-3 
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for the present. Because, that i:i all he mid he did; that he was induced by 
those representations to hold his hand for the pre:5ent. And that is shown by 
,Exhibit 84, page 175, when he says, he will hold hi:i hand but he reserves the 
right at any time .to approach the Bankers' A::,sociation. 

Then he receives Exhibit 86, page 176, a report in June from Mr. Haney, 
who in writing that letter would seem to indicate, one would think, some good 
faith, because it was not necessary for Mr. Haney to write that letter, but he• 
voluntarily says that as you are asking to keep in touch with the bank, I am 
sending you this report. 

Now, there would seem to be no doubt that Sir Thomas White and M_r. 
,La:lh and I think Mr. Crerar were given wrong information and were misled. 
There would seem to be no doubt that Sir Thoma:i relied largely on Mr. Lash 
iand his opinion of Mr. Haney. And there would seem to be no doubt that Mr. 
Lash relied on Mr. Haney. In any event the above show the steps that were 
taken on the 1916 repre:,entation<,. Tho::-e references I think cover it fully and 
my comments of course are comments of my own and not of your lordship, but 
the Exhibits show the answer to the question as to what action was taken in 
1916 upon those representations. 

Now what action wa:, taken in 1918? 
That is shown by Exhibit 90, page 179. That is a letter that 1 have 

already read, I think. It is from Sir Thomas to Mr. Lash, saying these various 
seriou,,, charges have been made and he is going to have a thorough investigation 
made by the Bankns' Association, but before doing it he wants a reply from 
Mr. Haney and his Board. Exhibit 92, page 180 is a reply from Mr. Lash 
to Sir Thomas White, not sending the information, as Mr. Haney is away, 
but the germ of one of the conclusions which affected the matter later, is there. 
He says: 

"I know that Mr. Machaffie has had strained relations with J\I· 
Hanry for some time past, and what he says about the Home Bank and 
Mr. Haney must be regarded in that light. I think I told you that the 
profits of last year were quite sufficient to pay the dividend without 
crediting unpaid interest as profit-s. My last interview with Mr. Haney, 
relating to Home Bank affairs, showed a decided improvement in the 
condition." 

Now there of course is a letter, not very long, and not containing much 
information, but it does create an issue immrdiately with Mr. Machaffie':5 state­
;ment about.the profits corning out of intere:::t; and Mr. Lash states that he had 
told Sir Thomas that the profits of last year were quite sufficient, and there­
fore I take it that the inference would be, that I know about last year, and 
therefore Mr. Machaffie's statement as to last year is wrong, because I tell 
you it is, and you will probably find that his other stateme_nt:, are similarly 
inaccurate or wrong. 

Then Exhibits 93, 94 and 95, at pages 181 and 182, are simply letters ex­
plaining the delay, as to why the Minister'<, demand has not been attended to. 

And Exhibit 96, page 182 is a report signed by Mr. Haney and said to be 
the unanimouc; resolution of the Board of Directors of the Home Bank of 
Canada on October 29th, 1918, certified by M. J. Haney. . 

That report is a very skilfully drawn document, and if analyzed, I think 
at that time would have disclo::;ed the fact that the truth was not being told 
_the Minister. However, as a result of that and perhaps other circumstance,1, 
;nothing very much was done. Sir Thomas replies in Exhibit 97, page 187, 
indicating that he has perused that report with some care, because he rnys to 
;Mr. Lash that it is stated in the Board's report that no unpaid interest upon 
account No. 3 or other inactive accounts has been credited to profits since 
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May 31st, 1917. You will remember that he had been promised that it would 
not be credited in 1916 or 1917. Then he says: " This would seem to imply 
that for many years interest has been added to principal of accounts which 
were not capable of ·liquidation or reduction and that such added interest is 
therefore now represented as part of the bank's capital or reserve in its pubilc 
statements." So that Sir Thomas apparently perused that report of the Board 
and accepted it as being true, and accepted the admission, which it was, that 
profits had been added in 1916 and 1917, but that they were not now being 
added, and as a result he asks for reports on the account'l Numbers 2, 3 and 4 
on page 5 of the Board's report, and, "copies of the bank's ledger entries show­
ing in detail all advance-, made, interest added from time to time, any pay­
;ment:3, in reduction of principal, and full particulars of security now held." 
Which would seem to be a very proper step for the Minister to take. 

Then Exhibit 105, page 191 is a h:tter from Mr. La~h, enclosing the par­
ticulars of these three accounts, which particularsi are Exhibits 107, at page 194, 
108 at page 196, and 109 at page 201. 

That covers the steps taken by Sir Thomas White under the 1918 complaints. 
His confidence in Mr. Lash is apparently still of the greatest, and he was 
undoubtedly perhaps lulled into a sen'5e of security by that confidence; a com­
parison of the statements with the previous ones filed in 1916 would however 
h:we di:;closed a position utterly at variance with the Directors' report, and one 
wonders how far one mus·t go, because in spite of the criticisms which have been 
made throughout as to th~ inaction in this matter, it does seem to me, from 
a perusal of what was done, sir, and what was filed, that if there had been some­
body in the Department who took these long reports and seriously studied them, 
that the whole face of the position of this b'ank would have been exposed at once; 
if a technical practiral man had been there to study and compare these reports 
which were filed in 1916 ,and which were filed in 1918 more parti9ularly when 
they could be compared with the monthly and annual returns which are made 
to the Department month by month, the weakness would seem to have been 
not that Sir Thomas "did not get information, that is did not take reasonable 
steps to get the information, but that there was no one there to deduct the mis­
information which was given to him. In any event, those are the steps taken 
and those Exhibits I think cover the step:,; taken by the Minister as the result 
of those representations. 

Now after the resignation of Sir Thomas White, although this perhaps is . 
not entirely within the question, certai_n other steps were taken by Sir Henry 
Drayton arising out of these representations. 

These are contained in Exhibit 64 at pages 117 to 123; and Exhibit 65, 
pages 125, 127 and 141. Then there were also personal interviews with Mr. 
Daly. Apparently Sir Henry relied on Mr. Miller Lash and su'bsequently on 
Mr. Daly, and these accountti were not studied carefully and compared with 
the previous accounts on the file. In other words, the weakness seems to hr.ve 
been, to my mind, not so much the getting of the information as what you did 
with it after you got it. Then I submit that on Mr. Roberts' evidence there 
was nothing to call Mr. Fielding's .attention to the matter what-,oever, and he 
did nothing. In other words, to make that clear, :\1:r. Roberts states that that 
file was put, in February 1916, in the Departmental files, and there was 
not a thing to cause Mr. Fielding to go back to it; that is to go back seven 
years or six years in that file and look up these complaints made by the 
Western Directors. In other words, there was absolutely nothing to attract the 
Minister's attention to the fact that there was or had ever been a complaint 
on file with respect to the Home Bank. 

79476-3½ . 
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That finishes, sir, my ob!'ervations upon the third question, and as it 1s 
one o'clock, I presume this will be an appropriate time to adjourn? 

His LORDSHIP: Yes. 

Proceedings stand adjourned at 1 p.m. Tuesday 2oth May, 1924, until 
2.30 p.m. 

AFTERNOON SESSION 

OTTAWA, ONT., TUESDAY, 2oth l\Iay, 1924. 

Proceedings resumed at 2.30 p.m. 

ARGUMENT BY Mr. SYMINGTON, ref'umed: 

Mr. SYMINGTON: My lord, at the time of adjournment I had endeavoured 
· to deal with the first four of the specific que:;tions asked in the Petition, and the 

fifth question is: 

"What was the financial condition of the said Home Bank of Canada 
in the years 1915, 1916 and 1918, respecfr,;ely, and what steps, if any, 
could have been taken by the Government to save the :iituation." 

His LORDSHIP: Mr. Symin~on, may I a!'k y6u if you place any particular 
meaning upon that expression "prPscnt depositors" in the fourth .question? You 
have passed it. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Oh, yes, my lord, I have not dealt with that. I will deal 
with that now. 

His LORDSHIP: I was just watching, with interest, to hear what you had 
to say about that. . 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Yes, my lord. I have not dealt with question 4 at all. 
I dealt with question 3. The!1 question 4: 

"What effect would an audit under Scrtion 56A of the Bank Act, if 
made in 1915, 1916 and 1918, have had upon the conduct of the affair:; of 
the said bank upon the po;;ition of the present depositors." 

1915 I can eliminate. 1916, I take up. 
Kow, my lord, it is very difficult to look back at a situation eight years ago, 

and, to a large extent, I must concur in the observation of Sir Thomas White of 
the difficulties your lordship must have in placing your mind in a po,:ition to 
judge of what might or might not have happened under conditions :l'i they existed 
then. The evidence would seem to show that if, there had been a proper audit 
under Section 56A in 1916 there would have been disclosed a situation es:;eutially 
different from what it apparently was in the Minister's mind. 

By a proper audit, I accept the evidence of Mr. Clarkson and l\Ir. Edwards, 
that a proper audit is more than a mere adding up, or copying, or compilation of 
figures. Sir Thomas White seems to indicate that possibly Mr. Clarkson and 
Mr. Edwards are a little above the ordinary run of auditors in the matter of 
their ability to appraise as well as audit, but whether that is or is not so I think 
it is clear that in any event, a proper audit, even a comparison of the book:; of 
that bank at that time would have disclosed, as I say, a situation c:,.,:;entially 
different from what was in the Minister's mind. 

Mr. Clarkson, at page 253, says that he has not formed an opinion as to the 
exact position of the bank in 1916. He was very careful, apparently, to guard 

• 
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himself in that respect. Mr. Clarkson recognized, I think, the difficulty pf placing 
himself in a position to judge in 1916 when 1916 was long since past, and he also 
recognized that his mind and judgment must have inevitably been influenced 
by what he himself had discovered in the light of the subsequent fiasco. 

At page 274 he says that the losses, in his judgment, throughout the whole 
history of the bank, were frpm nine to nine and a half- millions. 

Mr. McLAUGHLiN: That is over and above the capital and reserve? 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Yes. At page 275 he says the losses since 1916 have been 

seven and a half to seven and three-quarters to eight million dollars, and fresh 
advances since 1916 over and above the capital and reserve, although that 
question as to "over and above capital and reserve " seems to be somewhat 
confused, because a iittle later on in the page, Mr. Lee says: 

"Exclusive of capital and reserves.-A. No, that amount has been 
lost. Now, Mr. McLaughlin, how much of the nine and a half millions, 
I mean over and above this seven and a half millions was lost subsequent 
to May, 1916, or prior, I am not prepared to say." 

That was his final statement at page 275 on that subject. 
At page 283 he says: · 

"In 1916. He must have felt that the bank was not earning profits 
sufficient to continue payment of dividends without capitalizing interest 
on accounts which were in jeopardy or at least in deep water; and that 
being the case, the situation must have appealed to him as a serious 
situation." 

Now, that was in answer to direct questioning as to what would have 
happened if an auditor had gone in, and that is about as far as Mr. Clarkson 
will go, "That he must have felt that it would have been a serious situation". 

At pages 285-6, he again, at some length, goes over that subject, and says 
he would have found a very serious situation, but he cannot say definitely what 
position he would have found. 

And he finally says, at page 286: 
"A. But the point I want to make, Mr. Lafleur, is, that I don't 

think any auditor would want to say that there was a very serious loss 
in it, in view of the reporl5 whiC'h were in the bank with regard to that 
timber. He certainly would have called attention to the account, an 
absolute lock-up, no interest being paid on it. 

Q. Would not that be a danger signal? Here is a man who has got 
timber properties of immense value as he believes, and he does not think 
it worth his while to protect those properties by paying interest. Would 
not that be a danger signal to any auditor?-A. So far as Frost is con­
cerned, he has not for a, long period of time been able to pay interest on 
these things, personally; there is no question about it. If you ask me 
if there are any danger signs. I say there were a great many danger signs; 
I say this revenue income situation was one." 

I think I may fairly summarized Mr. Clarkson's evidence upon that subject 
as a guarded statement, that he could not say what the position of the bank 
was, or what the auditor would have discovered other than he would have dis­
covered a serious situation, and more particularly on this interest-earning basis. 

Mr. Edwards was examined upon that point, and at page 499 he made 
a statement which governs, and must be considered in your consideration of 
his other evidence, and that was that his evidence with regard to the position 
of certain account:J and certain losses which were estimated in connection with 
those accounts must of necessity be tinged to a certain extent by his knowledge 
of what has subsequently happened. 
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So that when Mr. Edwards makes his statement it is almost subject to 
that overriding consideration on his part, which was a perfectly natural one, 
that his judgment upon that point must be viewed in the light of what he learned 
of subsequent proceedings. :Now, having that in mind, at page 507 he places 
the losses, up to and including 1916, at $3,370,000. He dealt with how he made 
that up, and he made that up by virtually a valuation of certain assets, made in 
1923. 

MR. McLAUGHLIN: 1916. 
MR. SYMTNGTON: No, he made it up in 1923, that is, he was trying to value 

and appraise the situation in 1916, his value and appraisal being made in 1923. 
Your lordship must recognize, of course, that this is a very difficult thing 

to <lo, and that, at mo::;t, it would largely be an approximation. For instance, 
he put,; among that loss $400,000 for Home Bank shares taken over in the Banque 
Internationale. Well, of course, that is predicated entirely upon the opinion 
that Home Bank shares at that time were worthle~s. As a matter of fact, they 
may have been worthlei::s, but throughout the course of years that follow that , 
stock sold and sold quite readily, apparently, in the market, stock prices that 
would have realized a larµ:e part of that $400,000. The reason, of course, Mr. 
Edwards put:i it in as a lo:s:i of $400,000 is because in his judgment at that time 
the capital and reserve was gone and, therefore, it was worth nothing. 

But that just indicates one of the difficulties of trying, in 1923, to appraise 
on the basis of what you could get for something in 1916. 

He puts the Frost timber account loss at that moment at $850,000. At 
the same time there was, in fact, on file in the bank Elliott's cruisers' reports, 
subsequently Lacey's cruisers' reports, and the report of Mr. Haney and l\Ir. 
Crerar of their visit to British Columbia looking into the question of the value 
of that security, and they apparently unanimously reported that there was no 
loi,s of $850,000 but, in fact, there was a margin at that time of about three­
quarters of a million dollars. They turn out to be wrong, though ~fr. Crerar is 
of the opinion still, apparently, that had vigourous steps been taken in 1916, 
1917 or 1918, to have di,;posed of that timber, they would have got all their 
mon~y and there would have been no loe-s. Whether he is right or whether 
he is wrong, I do not think anybody can say. There is apparently no doubt 
that at that time timber was selling at a price which would have realized a great 
deal more than the appraised value. 

Mr. Edwrd::; put-, the Prudential Trust loans at an abrnlute loss of $500,000. 
Technically speaking, that is probably correct. ·I do not know that technically 
speaking even it was correct. The railway security had apparently gone. The 
Prudential security at that time was in the position that nobody knew whether 
the Prudential Trust Company were liable or not, and I do not know that any­
body to-day knows whether the Prudenti9l was liable or not. But, as a ma,tter 
of fact, arising out of that tran:oaction wa.,; the saving of New Orleans Railway, 
the electric railway, the Algiers Railway which, apparently from the liquidator's 
evidence, will reimburse the bank, certainly to some e:ll.tent. He did not want 
to say how far, became he is negotiating, but it is another indication of how 
difficult it is for Mr. Edwards or anybody else to have appraised a lof:'s in 1916. 

He put::; the Pellatt lm:s at $750,000 in the direct loan, and the subsidiary 
at $300,000. Those securitie':l, you will remember, were partly stock and partly 
real e:state. Apparently as eminei{t a person as Mr. Lash at that time thought 
the Pellatt securities would realize absolutely their face value. And so on with 
the others. I simply quote those to show that, although Mr. Edwards state:;, in 
his best opinion, which he was giving perfrctly impartially, that amount,, namely, 
the capital and re;:;erve, arnl something more, had disappeared, Rtill I think we 
must view it in the light of an attempted appraisal made some seven or eight 
years after the event, and, therefore, perhaps cannot be considered as accurate 
a,; one made at the time could have been. 
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Then Mr. Edwards, at page 513, puts the later losses, the total los::3, at 
'$7,527,000, considerably less than Mr. Clarkson puts it. They do not agree by 
several millions, but that is what happens, I take it, if auditors are endeavour­
ing to apprai::ie values without having people who are experts giving an ~xpert 
opinion upon them. 

Later, at page 513, in dealing with the situation up to 1916, I think his 
first figures disclose a lo:,,;:3 of a million dollars more than capital and reserve. 
He states there that the liabilities and a:;sds would have been, roughly speak­
ing, about the same in 1916. In other words, the capital and reserve would 
have been wiped out, but the depositors would h1we had security there for 
roughly one hundred cents on the dollar. 

Mr. McLAuGHLIN: With the double liability. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: No, I think not, because I was examining him upon the 

statement which he put in, in view of his lordship's question: 
"Mr. SYMINGTON: If you look at 1916, the liabilities are shown as 

$18,000,000 and the a'3scts $21,000,000. Now, as I take it, Mr. Edwards, 
you "UY as a result of your investigation that tho:;e assets would have 
been reduced by about $3,000,000?-A. Yes. 

Q. That would have been the exact situation, therefore the lia-
1bilities and assets would have been, rough~y speaking, about the 1:;ame? 
-A. Yes. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Is that what your lordship wanted? 
His LORDSHIP: I wanted him to say that. You have put that in 

his evidence and he assents to it, that is all right. Then assuming that 
all the other assets were liquid and· could be realized upon, that would 
have left pretty nearly enough money for the depositors?-A. Pretty 
nearly. 

Q. The deposits were ten millions and better at that •time. Of course 
that would wipe the shar.eholders out absolutely?-A. Quite. 

Q. And if there had been any lack of funds to satisfy the de­
positors the double liability would be there to meet that, presumably? 
-A. Yes." 

So that that indicates, of course, a9ain, that Mr. Edwards' valuation is 
largely an estimate. • 

At page 507 he shows the profits which were shown by this bank, and he 
says that they were ehown as $1,873,000, or an overstatement of $2,747,000 
odd. In other words, there was a loss of $900,000 in operating apart from any 
capital losses, and Mr. Edwards estimates that from 1916 to 1923, apart from 
any capital losses, there was a loss of $900,000, as I take his figures. 

Then dividends were paid out during all those years, and, of course, that 
would be a further loss. Roughly speaking, the dividends were $90,000 a year. 

Then Eochibit 170, at page 495, shows the deposits and how they increased, 
but I think your lordship must take this Exhibit subject to an Exhibit which 
Mr. Lee ,mbsequently put in and which I have not the number of. But Ex­
hibit 170 shows that from 1916 to 1923 the deposits increased nine million 
dollars. • 

Exhibit 177, as you will notice, does not agree with Exhibit 170, and it 
wac, btated that, being a later Exhibit furnished by Mr. Clarkson, you must 
take it as being the more correct. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: What page is that on? 
The SECRETARY: Page 570, sir. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Exhibit 170 shows ten million dollars in May, 1916, 

and seventeen millions in May, 1923, this being the total deposits. If you 
take out the preferred claims they show that in the ordinary deposits there 
were $9,300,000 in May, 1916, and $16,000,000 in August, 1923, at the time the 
bank failed. 

• 
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Mr. McLAUG:ULIN: They were less than that in August. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: I have looked up the original. That heading should 

read "August, 1923." 
The SECRETARY: The original shows August. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: So that there was an increase of $7,000,000 in the or­

dinary depo;:;its between the two years, 1916 and 1923; there is a loss of $900,-
000 dividends paid, and whatever capital losses were made in that period. 

So much for what Sir Thomas describes as the auditor's statement. On 
the other hand, there is the evidence of valuations made at the time, the ap­
parent belief that the bank was solvent, and the question which he, Sir 
Thomas, quite properly asks, "Could anyone ~ay what an energet;c manage­
ment realizing on securities, conservatively husbanding the resources of the 
bank, taking advantage of growing deposits and extension of busine.:;s could 
have done?" 

From that viewpoint, apparently, Mr. Lash, Mr. Crerar, the other Direc­
tors, Mr. Machaffie, Mr. Bird, and Mr. Adair, srem to have thought that at 
that time the bank could have bettered its position, that it had bettered its 
position, and would either stand on its own feet or make a satisfactory amalga­
mation. 

I will submit to your lord:,hip that an oub:iide investigation would have 
produced some action. It is difficult to say how much would have been lost 
at that time, but certainly much less than in 1923. 

I think, with respect to 1918, that the situation is a little different, and 
it does seem to me that an audit in 1918 would have disclosed a state of affairs 
that would have precluded the bank carrying on. Supposing charges had been 
made, an inve,;tigation at that time into those charges, directed towards those 
charges would, I think, in the light of subsequent eventi, have proved most of 
them to be true. 

On the other hand, of course, the deposits had decreased from May, 1918, to 
May, 1923, but the deposits not entitled to a preference had increased some $3,-
800,000. 

Now, whether any bank could have been found to take this bank over 
in 1916, or in 1918, is, of course, speculative. Sir Henry .Drayton gave the 
opinion that apparently in 1923 the bank could have bec>n taken over. In the 
light of the evidence, personally I must question Sir Henry's judgment that a 
bank would pay apparently some trn million dollars or more to take over the 
Home Bank, but the fact that even under those conditions he come:; before 
this Commission and says he thinks it could have been takC'n over would indi­
cate that probably in the earlier years it could have been taken over. 

Sir Thomas White rather indic<itc>>' in his eYiuence that it could have been 
taken over. Different Finance Mini--ters have different vic,ws about amalgama­
tion:;. S.ome ure inclined to force them, others are not inclined to force them, 
and some are largely opposed to them, hut so far as the evidence here is con­
cerned. I think there is evidence upon whirh your lord.,hip might find that there 
at least was a very strong probability that, in 1916, that bank could have 
been taken over. 

If tlie bank had bern taken over in 1916, of course, the, then depositors, 
which is not the quc>stion asked here, would not have lo-;t. If it had been taken 
over in 1918 probably the then depm,itors would not have lost. Certainly if it 
had been taken over in 1916, the pre:,,ent drpo'-'itors, which is the languaire of 
your que,,tion, could not po,-,ibly haYe lo,:.t. Rwn though it wc>re not taken over 
by paying one hundred cents on the dollar those who are depositors now and who 
were not depositors then would not have lost. The question answers itsPlf, and 
seems rather idle as to what would have happened to the present depositors, 
because those who were not depositors then, of coun,e, could not have 



\.. 

HOME BANK OF CANADA 927 

possibly lost. You cannot say what would have happened. Of cours!!, 
if taken over they would not have lost. If wound up, if you take Mr. Edwards' 
statement, apart altogether from the co::;t of liquidation and so on, according 
to his judgment the double liability would have satisfied the depositors in 1916. 
There is no evidence that it would have satisfied in 1918. What would have 
happened in 1918, if that audit had been made with respect to the position of 
the present depositors, there is not a tittle of evidence. Rather there are 
figures showing that the bank JYaS steadily ,losing money. Of course the de­
posits were increasing. I think the only answer probably your lordship could 
make to that is that the loss to the present depo'3itors would be le:::,'5. I do not 
think there is any evidence that justifies any definite finding as to anything like 
an approximate amount with respect to that question, and, further than that, 
I think it is almost impossible ,and difficult to go. 

And so I pass, sir, to the fifth question: 
"What was the financial condition of the said Home Bank of Canada 

in the years 1915, 1916 and 1918, respectively, and what steps, if any, 
could have been taken by the Government to save the situation." 

As to the financial condition of the Home Bank in 1916, I think that has 
largely been discu"sed under the previous head. Mr. Clarkson says probably 
the capital anu reserve was gone. Mr. Edwards says about the same thing, and I 
think this does not take into account the effect of closing the doors which 
forres liquidation, and cost of winding up, and these estimates must, of neres­
sity, be tinged in the light of subeequent events, and so far as your lordship is 

, concerned, the only evidence is that, roughly speaking, the capital and reserve 
of the bank was gone. That is about the only evidence you have. 

You can have argument too, that that did not necessarily ruin a bank. The 
bank had continuing earning power, growing deposits. Marginal losses, as Sir 
Thomas puts it, in certain accounts, often show it is possible to argue, and I 
think argue rightly, that that bank might still have recovered, but so far as the 
financial condition goe::i which is the question, the only evidence upon which 
you could make a finding, my submission is that the capital and reserve wa:3 
gone in 1916. With respect to 1918 conditions were not any better, but, if any­
thing, and I think clearly, were worse. 

There had been a loss in dividends 'of $220,000 up to that time, but it is im­
possible to say what portion of the capital lo;:;ses took place in thoRe years 1916 
to 1918. My own judgme!\t, on looking at the various statements, is, that the 
losses in those two years were not as great as they were in subsequent periods. 
That is my own judgment, it is an inference from the figures, but to make a 
finding upon it is difficult. There is no definite evidence upon it, but a perusal 
of the figures which Mr. Edwards filed, as to the losses and over::itakment of 
added interest in earh year, would seem to indicate that there was not a great 
deal of capital loss in those two years but some. 

Then, my lord, having that in mind,' "What steps if any could have been 
taken by the Government to save the situation?" 

I submit that the Government could by an inspection, either through its 
own officers or by means of the Bankers' Association, have found out the situa­
tion. 'The bank could have been wound up with con::;equently no loss to the 
people who subsequently became depositors, and probably with some saving to 
the depositors at the time. The amount of such saving is speculative, and no­
body could hazard at this time an accurate estimate. If you want to take 
.the estimates of Mr. Edwards and Mr. Clarkson, they probably would have 
rereived their money. Secondly, it was possible an amalgamation might have 
been arranged, in which case the depositors would not have lost. 

f 
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But I submit that it is impossible to say at this stage definitely whether 
any bank would have been willing to tuke a bunk over, either in 1916 or in 1918, 
and, as illustrative of that, Mr. Machaffie at page 393 gives some evidence that 
is rather important on that point. He said that in the midwinter of 1917 he 
drew up a list of accounts, Exhibit 137, page 393, totalling $7,900,000 of which 
$2,400,000 were all right, and $5,500,000 were accounts which would not be 
acceptable by another bank at their face value. 

Now, Machaffie was a banker. He r;:aid he had in mind the bank being 
taken over, and as early as midwinter 1917 he drew up Exhibit 137 showing 
five and a half million dollars that other banks would not have been willing 
to accept. 

It is all very well to say what banks would or would not do. It. is all very 
well to say "any bank would have been glad to bke over the Home Ban!{; 
because of it" connection," and so on, but if you place before the management 
of a bank, one that is caring for itc; shareholders, a proposition to take over 
a bank in that position, and can show what that management would do, well, 
there is no evidence here of it, and I personally have some considerable doubt 
in the face of that r;:tatement of Mr. :;\,lachaffie's, as a banker in 1917, whether 
that bank could have been taken over, or if taken over, whether it could have 
been taken over without loss to the depositors. 

However, whether it was tal-:en over or not, it is clear that there would 
have been leRs loss to the pre~ent depositor. How much le:-;s there is no evidence 
here to show. If Mr. Machaffie's statement is right, it would 1,cem to be clear 
it was a selling propo1,ition. The capital and rei::erve, and con,,iderably more, 
were gone. 

These are considerations for your lordship, considerations which, I think, 
are very difficult to answer. There is a chance that it could have been taken 
over. There is the possibility it might have been wound up. In either case, 
the loss to the prE!sent depositors would have been le!''>. How much les• I do 
not think your lordship can say. 

Now, my lord, the only other thing is that section of your Commis:,ion 
which authorizes you to expres~ any opinion you may see fit to expres!'. 

His LORDSHIP: Before you paH from that, Mr. Symington, as you read 
the Commission, is it incumbent upon me to make any reference to the amount 
of lMci? 

Mr. SYMINGTON: No, my lord. It is not a;,ked specifically. It says, in 
that particular question, "What steps could have bren taken to save t11e situ­
ation?" That means, what steps could have been taken to try and effect an 
amalgamation which, perhaps, might have ::;aved the situation. Steps could 
have been taken to wind it up which would not have saved the situation then 
but would have saved· the situation now. 

Mr. LEE: For future depositors. 
Mr. Sn,n~GTON: No, the future depositors are not mentioned in that 

section. " Saving the situation " is a very broad and general sort of a que::;tion, 
and leave,:; to yollr lordship a wide discretion as to the nature of the an1,wer 
you shall make to it. My submif'sion to you, for your conc;ideration, has been 
that they cou~d have wound it up, or they could have tri€'d and mip:ht have 
effected an amalgamation. That is all I ran i::~y they might have done. 

With re!>prrt to that sertion of your Commi::;,,ion whirh authorizes you to 
express any opinion you may see fit to exprci::s on any and all of thes,i mnttt>r". 
I venturP to f'u1.w;est to your lonh-hip that your lordship should cxprcsc; an 
opinion, in setting forth your fart", that no one before this CommiEi"i0n, at 
lPnst the depo«itDr>< in their Prtition, have not set up any legal claim. That 
in so far as counsel have set up a legal claim in their argument, based upon 
negligence, I venture to suggest to your lordship-
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Mr. McLAUGHLIN: We never set up a legal claim. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: My friend has said he did not. I do not know why an 

argument is bm,ed upon negligence unless it is to set up a legal claim. 
l\fr. McLAUGHLIN: The Crown is not liable for negligence. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Your lordship then can set up the view that there is.no 

legal liability on the part of the Government, no legal claim and no legal 
liability on the pa.rt of the Government to reimburse these depositors. 

In addition to that, my lord, you have allowed a great deal of latitude to 
us all before this Commission, latitude which went beyond certainly what in 
my submission the exact wording of the Commission justifies. As a result of 
that, certain people have been subject, upon the, record, to very serious personal 
attacks, most of them not here to defend themselves. Most of those attacks, 
in my judgment, were made unjustly, and without a t.itle of evidenc~ to sub­
stantiate them, and I would suggest for your lordship's consideration whether 
it would not be your lordship's duty to express an opinion upon those re­
fle<'tions cast upon those gentlemen whether they are justified or whether they 
are not. · 

Then, my lord, as to the moral responsibility, or as to a compassionate plea 
for the depositors. I venture to submit to your lordship that that is not a 
judicial matter upon whirh your lordship should make any recommendation. 
The giving of money on a compa::,sionate plea must essentially be for Parliament 
and for the reprffentatives of the people. Somebody has ::mid it is the function 
of the Government to transfer one person's money to another. I do not know 
but that may have been said cynically, but if it is anybody's job it is Parlia­
ment's, and, therefore, it would seem to me that the finding of fact places 
Parliament in the position to judge upon the mer~ts of the compassionate plea. 

There is, however, one point I think your lordship might comment upon, 
and that is so abundantly clear that it seems unneces.,;ary to mention it, and that 
is, the cam,e of this loss, the approximate cause of this failure, or the reckless 
management of that bank. Questions have arisen. The question was raised 
in the Farmers' Bank case, and in the discussion which I have seen upon it, 
and in the findings there, I think a finding of that kind, if that is the true fact, 
is a finding which would enable Parliament to view the matter in the proper 
light. If however you have an idea of making a recommendation, your lordship 
will find very few precedents. As Mr. Lafleur stated we have endeavoured to 
trace precedents, I have looked up the Birkheck Bank case, I have had London 
communicated with, and I am advised that there is no precedent in England for 
the claim of the depositors. 

Mr. :McLAUGHLIN: McGregor's Bank. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: No, not M.cGregor's or any other bank. In any event 

that is the information I got, the Department communicated with London 
and so informed me. The precedent Mr. Lafleur quoted is the Farmers Bank 
case of Canada, a ease strongly similar to this in many ways, particularly in 
its essential:;, in the neµ:ligence or inaction alleged. I do not propose to go 
into it here but if your lordship wants to find the argument'! pro and con 
you can find them in Hansard in 1914, the strongest case that could be made 
out on both sides, I think very little was left unsaid in that debate as to the 
rea,:ons why depositors r:,hould be paid a compassionate allowance and as to 
the rea,;ons why not. A<J I said, I am not recommending to your lordship 
that you do make any such recommendation, but if you consider it your duty 
you c;an at any rate find a good deal of information on the subject there. 

In closing I desire to join Mr. Lafleur in thanking you for the very-kindly 
way in which you have conducted this Commi::::;ion and for the courtesy that 
you have extended to myself. 
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ARGUMENT BY MR. l\IcLAUGHLIN, KC. 

My lord: In the first place I may say our petition shows that we do not 
claim that we have any claim that could be enforced in a Court of Law. 
Without quoting any authority, there is not any doubt that a MiniRter of 
the Crown is not legally liable either for the advice he gives his 10overeign 
or for the exercise of prerogatives. Neither is· the Crown liable at all, either 
by petition of right or otherwise, for the discretionary exercise of prerogatives. 

Con10equently we poceeded in this way by a petition. We set forth a 
case not claiming any legal liability, but that the circum::tance::,; were such that 
on ordinary principles of ju~tice that appeal to all right-thinking men the 
depositors h_ave an equitable and moral right; that the Crown, while not legally 
liable and not compellable to do anythinu;, is inviolably just, and when a case 
is presenter!. in which the application of these principles of justice which appeal 
to rea~onable men require it, the Crown will of its mere mot,ion grant full, 
adequate and complete justice. That is the foundation of our c~aim. 

Consequently I am not referring to any legal precedents. The ca~e of the 
FarmerR Bank was presented in the same way, and the Crown adopted the view 
of the Farmers Bank depo::itors and the Government brought in a Bill which 
pas:;cd the Commons, and wa::,; rejected by the Senate, and probably would 
have been brought on again the next year if it had not ·been that the war 
came on. This was I think in the St~sion j.ust before the war. 

Sir Thomas White objected to some extent to the truth of our petition, 
becau;::e we stated in the petition that rcpre:;entations had been made in 1915 
and 1916 and that what Sir Thomas White did was to refer the matter to 
Mr. Lash instead of making any investigation himself. Sir Thomas apologised 
afterward as to casting any' reflection upon us· because the facts stated in 
our petition were taken from a published, signed interview by him publi:lhed 
in various newspapers of Canada, which he has put in at pages 322 and 324 
of the evidence. That interview stated that these representations had been 
made to hiin and that he had referred the matter to ·Mr. Lash. When we 
made the petition we under the impression that Mr. Lash wa!' acting for the 
Government, because it was so indicated in Sir Thomas White's interview. 
Therefore it wa'5 a burprise to us to find when we investigated the papers 
afterward, which were not all available to us until they were produced here 
by Mr. Robert<;,-t:hat is the first time I ever saw them,-that Mr. Lash never 
acted for the Minister but artrrl always for the Home Bank. I might say here 

; that I appreciate Sir Thomas White's sympathy with the depo1,itors, he thinks 
we have a good moral and compassionate claim and it' we had only proceeded 
in some other way he would have heartily supported us. I only hope Sir 
Thomas will be broad-minded enough to feel that if the depo~itors have a 
moral claim, or a ·claim on the generosity and sympathy of Parliament, the 
mere fact 1that they were unfortunate in the coun:,,el they selected should not 
deprive them, not only of his pa:,sive sympathy but his active assistance. 

There were certain t.hing,; that Sir Thoma!' White a~ked you find that I 
wi,,h to refer to a moment. He asked you to make a finding a~ to this file. 
Of cour~e we have made no charges as to any impropriety as to this file, and 
personally I do not believe that any existed, but if it is necessary to make any 
finding as to that I have no objection. 

He w,k€d further for a finding as to his arreptance of a retainer or fee of 
$1,500 for advice given to the bank upon the 13th of August. That is a matter 
we did not bring up, one there is no charge made about. He make-; no complaint 
against us but his complaint is about remarks that have been made in the news­
papen,. As far as that matter is concerned I have expres::;ed no opinion and do 
not desire to express any, and it is a thing I do not think your lordship should 



HOME BANK OF CANADA 831 

make any finding on whatsoever. Public men are always liable to criticism, 
Sir Thomas White se~m'l to be naturally, and probably a little more than 
ordinarily, sensitive. He says he has been maligned by the newspapers through­
out this country, although he says three quarters of them are in his favour, 
which surely ought to be sufficient to satiRfy any public man. Anyway as 
your lordship has been a public man you know that it is one of the penalties, 
or perhaps the perquisites of public life, to receive newspaper criticism, it is 
not a thing that public men ought to worry over to ask your lordship to make 
any finding upon. It is only one of the thousand petty ills that flesh is heir to. 

I quite agree with his ·argument that• he was not only not compellable but 
that he -,hould not produce the advice that he gave the Dir~ctors of this Bank. 
I am quite satisfied that the advice would be honest and good advice, but it 
appears that the bank did not follow it because it has been decided in our On­
tario Courts in the Central Bank case, Wells & McMurchy, that the deposits 
taken by a bank after they knew they would have to suspend payment were 
fraudulently taken, so that this bank went on from Monday the 13th to Friday 
the 17th taking additional deposits, took some $2,800 from my friend Mr. Lee 
about an hour before the bank closed, these moneys were all fraudulently taken, 
and I am sure your lordship will have a good deal of sympathy for Mr. Lee owing 
to the way he has been treated, I think he is deserving even as much sympathy 
as my friend Sir Thomas• White is by reas'On of the newspaper critici:;m he has 
received. 

Sir Thomas gave a good deal of attention to matters of law, matters which 
seemed to me not to require any authorities to support them, just like tl1c ques­
tion of giving in evidence the advice he gave his clients, it required no authority 
for your lordship to understand that simple proposition of law. When it comes 
down to the questiQn of juri~diction I agree with what my learned friend Mr. 
Lafleur and my learned friend Mr. Symington have said. Sir Thoma:; devoted 
a great deal of time to show that I was wrong in the fin,t place whrn I said that 
the Crown and the Mini~ters of the Crown were not compellable, that the word 
"must" waR not properly ~pplicable to them. The moment he had entirely 
ei::tabli<:hcd and satisfied himself about that he showed that the ::.VIinistcrs were 
not accountable to any Court except Parliament. That is simply the principle 
I stated in the first instance, that the Minister _acting as a 11inistc>r :s not 
arcoun~able to any Court. That has been decided in England more than 100 
years ago. I do not remember the name of the case, but when the matter came 
up the Court refused to hear the Minister, refused to take his explanation, said 
the matter was disposed of entirely, he was not responsible to the Court for the 
advice he gave to the Crown or for the Crown's prerogative as long as he wa'l 
within the law. The fact that the Bank Act says ."shall" in a number of case;;, 
mrre1y Ministerial acts where the Minister is s~mply persona designata and in 
evPry ca<:e where "shall" is med would be liable becauf:e the Mini,;tn when he 
breaks the law is liable just as anyone else, but when acting as the Minister of 
the Crown in the -exercirn of the Royal prerogative he certainly is not account­
able to anyone. 

At the same time however, the Minister of the Crown is subje~t to criticism; 
every newspaper in the land and every subject of His Majesty has not the right 
but the privilege of criticising the Ministers of the Crown for everything they 
do. If your lordr,hip is disposed to make an criticism or give any opinion as to 
the advisability or wisdom of any action the Minister took I think you have 
the same right, not only as Commissioner, but as citizen to express such criticism 
as you may think proper. And there is precedent in tnat case of the Farmers 
Bank, Sir William Meredith expressed his views with reference to the action 
that ought to have been taken by the, Right Hon. Mr. Fielding in connection 
with the issue of the Charter or certificate to that bank. In fact if Sir Thomas 
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should get a judgment that would take away our right of criticism of Ministers 
of the Crown, he would take all the fun out of politics and a large proportion 
of the pleasure of His Mujesty's subjects. 

~ir Thomas gave a very learned discus~ion on the impossibility of coming 
to any <·ondusion as to past evC'nt'-. He defined very fully " retrospective 
imagination." In that respect I say his opinion is contrary to t.he opinion of the 
age,-. The general opinion is that history written at the moment is not as 
relable as history written years afterward when passions have died out and one 
is able to look upon the matters in question with a calm and judicial mind. If 
Sir Thomas White's view about that i~ correct then the people who have had the 
greate::;t retrospective imagination in modern times would be men like Gibbon, 
yet Gibbon wrote a better history of Rome than any contemporary did; or 
Motley, who wrote a better history of the Dutch Republic than any Dutchman 
of the period; or :\facaulay or Greme in writing their histories, yet they wrote 
far bettrr histories than contemporaries could have done. And I "think that on 
investigating this matter your lordship will have sufficient of that kind of 
retrospective or historical imagination to enable you to come to a fairly truthful 
conclusion on the questions submitted to you. 

Now I think Sir Thomas mi10conceived the purpose of this investigation. 
He 8eemed to be obsessed with the idea that it was a personal attack upon 
himself. We are representing 60,000 depo-,itors, all of whom have suffered 
materially, and many thousands of whom have suffered and will suffer far more 
than ;:-:;ir Thomas White ran possibly suffer in connection with this investigation; 
and I think we may be excused for not altogether agreeing with him. I want to 
my that in drawing the petition and supporting the petition before your lordship 
I have endeavoured as far as was possible to cast no personal reflections upon 
any man. If my learned friend Mr. Lafleur thought I was too hard upon Sir 
Thomas White, Sir Thomas did not think so him10elf, as he stated in his argument 
and stated to me personally that I had treated him absolutely fairly. I feel 
that I have retroEpective imagination enough to visualize the rondition that Sir 
Thom:t"s wa.;; in at that time almost better than her.an do it himself, as I think an 
outsider, an independent party, can give a better history and interpret better the 
minds of people who were engaged at a particular period in particular events 
than the people can themselve;:;, because their pa10c:ions and interests and feelings 
are so engros::;ed that they cannot take a judicial attitude. 

8ir Thomas was very eloquent as to what would have happened if he had 
closed the bank, it would have been the greatest sacrilege that had ever occurred 
since the days of :Martin Luther. That I think was a rather extreme view, many 
crimes have been committed since those by Martin Luther if he committed any. 
Then Sir Thomas turned around and said there was ab:;olutely no danger of my 
closing the bank, I would not have allowed it to fail under any circumstances, 
I would have had another bank take it. over, and I know I could. Then he went 
on to emphasize that still further by the beautiful simile of an exploratory 
operation, how, if he had closed the Home Bank, he would have been in the 
same position as a doctor if an action had been brought against him for not 
killing a man at the proper time to prevent him from doing damage afterward. 
I hardly think that is applicable. Although Sir Thomas seemed to think differ­
ently, I think it is a proper thing if the Minister finds that a bank is on the eve 
of insolvency, is no longer to be trusted with the deposits of the public, is in 
such a condition that if the public knew or had an inkling of the facts they would 
cease to deposit their money in it, it is not only a proper thing to kill that bank, 
but, whether it is his compellable dut.y or not, it.is his political duty to exercise 
the trust that is imposed upon him in the exercise of the royal prerogative to 
stop that bank; put an end to it. 

Then the argument that an inspection under Section 56A would by virtue 
of the inspection itself have brought about the failure of the bank, which might 
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have been disao;trou:;, of course is not supported by the evidence. I agree 
entirely with what my learned friend Mr. Lafleur said about that. He speaks 
about an inf'pection that would have been advertised, would be known, but tho 
Banker:,, Association, whom he was going to ask at one time to name a man to 
make the inspection could easily have taken such measures as would have 
enabled that to be done quite secretly, there was no obligation on the part of the 
Minister to have the public ·or the employees of the bank know for what purpose 
the man was tliere, they might think it was for the purpose of another bank 
taking it over, far more likely than anything else. Mr. Edwards, Mr. Clarkson 
and Mr. Machaffie have all shown that such an investigation could have been 
made without any danger to the bank. ' 

We all agree that .a terrible mistake was made when an investigation was 
not ordered at that time. If it had been made Sir Thomas White admits, and we 
all do, that the truth, or a great portion of the truth, would have been disclosed, 
conditions would have been brought to light either in 1916 or 1918 which would 
have rendered it apparent that the bank should not be permitted to continue in 
businesf'; and if thut investigation had been made and those conditions discovered 
the loss to the depositors would have been prevented. 

Now Mr. Lafleur and Mr. Symington have gone over so much of the evidence 
that I need only touch a few points that they have overlooked. With a great 
deal of what they have said I agree, although I think they did not take the 
matter as seriously as myself, because Mr. Lee and I have been right up against 
a turbulent crowd of depositors, and we succeeded at the first big meeting of 
_these depositors when every branch except one was represented, we succeeded 
with a great deal of difficulty in getting the depositors to consent to take this 
matter up as we have done, c0ntrolling that body of depositors, all of whom 
felt sore and many of whom bad extreme views, preventing them from creating 
an amount of trouble in this country in connection with its banking institutions 
and the general credit and business of the country which would have been very 
di:m,,trous. We have been up against that all the time and up to the pre:;ent 
have succeeded in controlling them, becam,e as I have stated before the banking 
and commercial and industrial interests of this country are rn linked together, 
the banks being the organizers and distributors of credit, the heart's blood of 
our induf'trial system, that anything that affects the credit of the bank:, so affects 
the busine,::; of the country that if even ten per cent of the depositors were to 
withdraw their money the banks would have so much less to carry on the indus­
trial and commercial and agricultural interests of the country that a panic 
would remit. So as business men we felt that it was of the greatest importance 
that anything of that kind should be checked. Our Committee did not succeed 
absolutely in checking it, there was one run on one bank, but there would have 
been many if it had not been for the efforts we made. 

Another thing Sir ThomaR White said was t.hat if he had the conclusion to 
call in the Bankers' Association it would have been giving this bank into the 
hands of its rivals who would have been interested in wrecking it. I have not 
that belief about the Canadian Bankers' Association. Sir Thomas seems to have 
been so obse!<sed with the idea that he must by all means establish in your 
lordship's mind, and through you in~the mind of the country, that he was abso­
lutely inviolable, that he put up case after case which will not stand even on 
its own feet. I am sure that the Bankers' Association would act on a different 
principle altogether. They would be interested in saving a bank, not in wrecking 
it. They would be like the Disciplinary Committees of the various Law Socie­
ties or the Medical Societies, no person ever questions that they treat every 
case with the utmost sympathy, and only in extreme cases do they impose the 
penalties which they are authorized to impo!>e by law. The Bankers' Associa­
tion has been organized and authorized by Parliament for that very purpose, it 
was the belief of Parliament that the Association would treat banking difficulties 
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that came before them fairly and sympathetically and in the best interests of 
the bank that was in difficulties, not trying to cru:;h out a rival. 

Sir Thomas White asked you to make a lot of findingR; (1) Hone-t dealing. 
(2) Faithful performance of duty. (3) Diligrnce. (4) Sound judgment. 

(5) Tremendous kindness. (6) That he does not regard himself as capable 
of saying what he should have done ,if war conditions had not existed. I 
think it is not neces~ary for yo1;1r lordship to make findings on questions of 
that kind. We are not making any attack on Sir Thomas White personally. 
Notwith::;tanding hii;; anxiety I think his reputation will stand anything we have 
said, certainly anything I have said, and as far as my friend Mr. Lee is concerned 

he is quite able to take care of himself. 
Now we come to the question that your lordship had to answer, which is 

the important thing; and as I have gone very carefully over the exhibits, and 
my learned friend over the evidence, before, I do not intern.! to bother you 
with saying very much. Of course the first question, r0presentations were 
made. You are aEke<l what those repre,,entatiuns were, and Mr. Symington 
had stated fairly fully what they were, I do not want to repeat. But I would 
like to add this further; the repre::entations stated that an officer of the bank 
had b(:en suspended for refusing to F>ign the monthly returns, ,indicating in that 
way that the monthly returns sent to the Government and by the Government 
published for the me of the public were false. They also stated th::tt these 
returns showed that there were no call loans or current loans outside of Canada, 
and that this Prudential loan being a direct lmn on the bonds of the New 
Orleans Railway were outside of Cr,nada. They showed clearly that the re­
turns being made to the Government were fabe, in carrying all these di:-puted 
accounts and frozen arrounts at their face value on the book:; and in the returns. 
Now I pass over the three accounts that have been partirularly mentioned 
and bke the schedule to Mr. Ad'.lir's report, which c,,howed that they were 
carrying at their full face value in the Toronto office accounts which were 
not properly secured and certain acrount'i,, for instance one for $19,000 or 
$20,000 of a concern that was in liquidation from v/hich not more than 85,000 
would be recovered, yet it was carried and reporte<l to the Government as good 
for the full amount. I think it wuc,, the Canadian Debenture Association 
(I have no copy of that schedule bPcause it wa:; not printed), where a lari:i;e 
amount was carried as a loan when as a matter of fact it wa<; the ownerf"hip 
of stock by the bank which had been purcha"ed in the name of the Manager 
but, which the bank had financed, it was not a loan at all. Representations 
will show, not in the originnl representation but the mbsequent correc,,pondence, 
Exhibit No. 53, that Mr. Barnard had ~b.ted,-and he was a Director of the 
bank at that time,-t'hat he was not liable at_all but was merely an agent for 
the bank in the purchase of this stock, and Mr. Edward<1 find:i that t.o have 
been the caiae, it wa'3 just ownen:hip by the bank of 2622 >-harec; of its own 
stock. Mr. Edward~ has worked out Mr. Adair's report and showH that on 
items set forth in that report there was a loss of about $700,000 at that time. 

These all show that the bank was continually making fal"e returns to the 
Government, so I will ask you to add that to what :\iir. Symington has said 
about what throe reprec,,entations showed. • 

The second question is whether, if surh representations were made, a Ec:tate 
of affairs wac,, revealed roncerning the condition of the bank which would have 
justified an investigation under the powers conferred upon the Mini-;ter by Sec­
tion 56A. Now as Mr. Lafleur and Mr. Symington have both agreed, and Sir 
Thomas White in his evidence, and especially in his crof''3-examination by Mr. 
Lafleur, said that undoubtedly such an investigation was justified, I think it is 
entirely unnecessary for me to say anything further; but without any evidence 
whatever, any representations coming from the quarter they did and being of 
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such a :,erious nature, your lordship will have no hesitation in rnying that if 
ever an invr:::tigation was jmtifird under Section 56A it was in this case. 

Then the third question, what action if any ,var-; takrn by the then Minister 
of Finance upon such reprc:;entations a:, may have been; well he got a report 
from tl:e managl'ment under Section 113 of the Act, thd is he got crrtain state­
ment'l. He did not get any report under Section 56A from anybody, he asked 
for one from Mr. Jones and afterward withdrew hits rrquest as he states in his 
evidence, he never made Mr. Jones his auditor under Section 56A, he was never 
paid and the only return he got from him was a copy of the ledger page of the 
Fro:::t account. 

All the rest of the com.',,pondence back and forward between Sir Thomas 
White and Mr. La-,h and Mr. Fisher and Mr. Crerar is not doing anything under 
the Bank Act, it is merely preliminary corre,:pondence in order that he might 
finally make up his mind whether he would do anything or not. He finally 
made up his mind, as Mr. Symin~on has said, that he would stay his hand for 
the present. That is the la:::t letter he wrote, so that is what he did, owing to 
representations made to him by 1\fr. Lash and Mr. Haney. That was certainly 
a great mistake, that was the mistake which has brought about the terrible dis­
aster which has occurred. We are not saying for a moment that Sir Thoma::; 
White did not act in good faith, v.re are not que:::tioning his honesty or integrity 
in the matter, but we do que:,tion the propriety, not from a legal point of view 
because we admit his di,-eretion, he might no matter what facts were s,tated, no 
matter how clearly it was proved that the bank was absolutely insolvent, he 
might refuse to inve:;tigate and we would be helple:::s from the legal point of 
view. But from a political point of view he would no doubt be disposed of. 

Now it was very uufurtunate that an investigation under 56A was not made, 
that is that an independent investigation was not made. It would not have 
been difficult, even a very small amount of information, such as the way the 
dividends were being paid, the written up interest on dead accounts in 1915 waR 
$116,000 more than the total alleged profits of the bank. In 1916-which of 
course he could not have investigated at that time-he could have found out 
very shortly afterward however, that the same condition existed. 

He did take the as-,urance from Mr. Lash th:..t no further interest would 
be added to the Frost or New Orleans account'l, or paid in dividends from them. 
He also took the assuran9e that a thorough inside investigation would be made 
by Mr. Haney and Mr. Machaffie. He says that Haney and Machaffie never 
promised him any report, but if he took an as::mrance from them that they would 
make a thorough investigation was it not a reasonable and natural inference 
that he expected a report of that investigation? What value from a public point 
of view or for determining·what action he would take in the future or other­
wise? He says " I will stay my hand for the present, leaving it open for myself 
to take whatever action I think right in the public interest in the future." What 
value for determining what action he would take would an inside investigation 
have that was never to be reported to him? I rnbmit that assurance was that 
an inside investigation should be had and a full and complete report made to 
him. 

He also took a further assurance that all important busineRs transactions 
should be under the control of Mr. Haney and, the Wes tern Directors. Then 
he left it. There was a letter a couple of months afterwards from Mr. Haney 
and a reply which is of no importance. He left the matter and paid absolutely 
no attention to it for two years and five months. He says he felt as great a 
responsibility toward the public in the exercise of his duties as would a counsel 
towards his client. What junior clerk in a law office would allow even.a com­
paratively small matter-that had been entrusted to his care to lie dormant for 
nearly two and a half years without any investigation? 

79476--4. 
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Xow I lia,e ];:i,,,.,vn f:ir Tbom:., "\\ .1it · intim, t••1y :1rnl fnr a lrng t:m,·, and 
I have a grt'at 1!1·ul of t •~ trd ; ,,d r "·:11 •t · ,r l.ir,1, t-:1d 1:11'1,·.· <,J'•t;rn ry 1·:r,·um­
r-tan<'t ·· I e11uld not un·l,r,hnl ~--- T!.,nr: "\\.1:tt· doing t'.:,.t, h•,·:,UH· :1r i~ a 
cardul m:•n and a rl.ilii;;i r,; m:lll r·•d rn1 111111··• r,1~n, a:1 t rv, rytL;r11 I I ul I ,-a_v 
in hi, favour I would .,,ty, ,tJ;d hr I . : - b, rr1 k:n,i , :1 ,ugh h - .v - -me ni1·,· t'..:n!!­
about rnr; an<l I kw1w ti th,1t in 19m ju- t Jwf, ,rr tlw WL •·, wlii,n tli,.rt· w r, 
tr11uhk with a numL.• 1• 11f 1' i1· itJ ur:1:w(• ,·1nup:mi1:, ;n Toro::itJ, h, •\ .. promµt.l) 
an<l effi,,;rntly ht a1 t:-d in th,· , < 1,1 , ) •1 · 11,p I Ii.id t ;c :> 't·""'c.re of : •i ,t;r,~ hini 
to ,-aye ollP in~titu1 ·oll: J,ut -:jr T;1nm:1, "\"\,. it, t 11•d tn t.•kF tou mu, h bunlP11 011 
hi, uwn .,hou'.dcr,._ H,. r, .tr! fr,,111 ],i · 111 ,k , · n : '_,,,1t tl1P t~r,ibk 1•,,nclifo,n-; 
that p-xi-t:•,l •luring tit(· war. ::\'o\'; I: .•1:r,v,• of l\·lry goo,' w: rd d that, and 
t.l1tJ,P of u- who li:d f<l'n" nn t 1lf' 5.gi~t in~ Jin,· :.w ,·,; 111 ,w w1 ft :t a,1 l 1. nc,w tl.1· 
ttrrible -train tL,t it w,,·, tlll l I t· tn f]Uit" :>ppr. ':utr his 1 iurd<'n, in fa,t I :,m 
not arguing, I am :.tlkim; fri•m ,,_·Lit I ' ,,~ to li' 1he ab,-olute t ·,1th bt vun•l a 
qw·-..tion, that ~-i' T "'111'.l" "\Yhit · ,,·.1- "'•· o,·1-rl<1a•·.1 d an,' "l'ngri>:-1.-,:ll ,, it'., W.tr 
v;ork for tL.t twu y1 ai.- :md fi. < rn, ,r,• '·-:, tlt-,t hP for;n t aoout t', · Home Ba:1k, 
and I don't bbmt· ·him t t :~Ip ·r.-,·n tl.y. Ht :.i•h ··t1 ', in u:"\\, r to t 11P quP:-1-
tion.- yuur lord--! ip a::::cl •l Jinn. t int tl.1 w:,r -:tu:,t :0'1 \\ '"' ·a f:,d1,1. a': h1,ugh 
he ,,.1, nut 1·011,t11,11 ,,f \\h·d tf"t ·tit mi,,h:· h; \t li.nl up11n his rni1,d, if anv. 
I thmk Hat i"' abc,ut t11f eff, ,·• 11f it, '""i I adm,t '.1i, m:1nlinP,-,. it1 ,,, yin·.r th:.t iIP 
m1:1 t-; no f'.('l'"l' :· .111, b:1t r• ·t >·, ,' tl I' ·.d o)P l,vr L :1 up, II lii:-1 ,huul,l,•r-•; ~•( ~ I 
t!.ink Wt' h:wr t '. l'l l't'l',,t .. illl' ,-.itu,1t1, 1v,~,,1:J>·l 1i;,, ; ll" '\( can b•·t.t1 r tdl_ \1 ':: .. I 
influcnctJ Li:- mmrl an I ,. · •. t , · •111 1•:I :- m11 .I ,•unng tt,..t r ·n, l w1tlwu· 
applyine; :..r,y too b1Uc· 1 rl'fr,.-p, ,' :, in1.:,d11 ... ·on. tu I lilt' to a ,·1,nl·iu-i1111 :, to 
the real .-fate of :iff.tir:-1. 

"\Vh"n tl j,, m•ittr r t·,,:,1. up lw p:hli Ii.,; tlw i11•, n-i1 w wl id1 ,tp~u :1 ,- on 
pagl' 322 aml 321 of t 11t eviden, :·, :n 1, J;,,Ji Ji, v, :J · trrn:d:v 1mµ 1 1: •i·1,l I war 
c·nnu1tion~, and tlH• hl't that In· r11c1ld 11.t po, ,il,ly durin<i; 1lit,t p1·r·o.: p(•nnit a 
bank tn f:,il, and 1 iat lu fr.trt ,; h pu<ring '.t1 .,f .Ill au lit•JT would 1·au", tLe bi>.nk 
to fail. Xow he ni-'", t,, ,mr p1 titi,,n, bu wt· ju. t ho'{ it ,y -rd for wnrd fro 1 
his ~t:.ttcmr-nt, and lw i-.. rP~ po"-,JO.L' for t' H • ·,t dt nH·nt an<! ~vc g:n I. rn 1-rt•d1t 
fur it.. Thai mu,-;1 Le L.kC'n ,,i•', ,,.f,r•·11,c· t,, hi, -..i:krn ;it"' t" war 1·,,1Hli­
tion:-:, t:i:::t umlt!r t'.·(• \Llr l'11nditiun:- that <·'.i-<tr•l p.-01,'1· ,\r"" vrry n<'rvou , and 
that owine; to war condition· he < oul l n11t ;•,,-:-:1t,·y pt rn1it a h mk to ,, il an·! 
that he th,,ught p,.tting ;n till ou•,,, 1· ·ut111t,r 11,-1: t ktVe t : • 1 f,.,,t: tl11t i­
not \1i~ own judgment, but tb1· ju lgmrnt ,,:· 11r. E .. 11t~·, \\ ;,id1 finu ,y \T .. _ L.,h 
acluped aguin,-t, his own opinion tlut '.1'.' uuph:1,-i,.1 ·l ''-' ,t~,mdy :n his )ptfrr of 
tl,r 29th 1' rbnwry, and he finally y!,<d,•.1 t11 :'.\Ir. L.i -h :tPd ,\lr. Hr 1cv, yidJ, l 
to thLir fear that an inw- tig:i• · m, miµ.:,t r:n1 t- a rnn whi,· 11 '\ ould ht• di· a-11 "11u, 
at th~t pniod. 

Now he has 1·x~ir1 ---c 1 a grc.1t ch•,tl m,,r.· twng'J- :·H:n I ,•0111d the grn,t 
strt;- ~ he wa:, urnlcr durirn~ that !H riod; and :-:ur1•ly, hk: t I e Oov1 rmrn·rd, human 
life and lmm,.m ,·apacit? h:i,- v,,t ,-ome limiht.i11n,. He t•H , nn tu ,k ':v ·b11w 
he wa-i workin~ ri~l.t.i<•n hour:, a tL:; In hi:-: LrPUT'H nt :,, t,,;i,.,. u i that )ip <'ou;d 
not :-.Jeep at night, and liow -:omr· timf' :.h·rwar,l• ::1 Ind a iwrvou- l-irr:1kdt1w11, 
and how it hus d(,,:trPycd hit- <'ap1.1·i1y for WtJrk for ten yr ,r.,, of l,j:-1 hfo. "\Ve 
have ~ot to gi' e 11 im f,r r:-i·dit Lr :!It!:, t. ~,.,, w1 frr Prdin·1:-y c·irrnm n-,,Id ,.,, 
Sir Thomas"\\ 11itr DP\ er wnuld hnw n,-,g'.11 t,·,l tie H ,rn.· B·mk. lk nenr would 
have al1o-\H'' l it to re::;t fur h\ o Y";,r:- a11ci a 1 

·: If; ~H ,1 vPr woul, 1 h·:vP lrt it ,lr11p 
at all without g1ttrn~ iwlc·rcnd,nt inforrnatiuin :tp: 111 whidi ht> 1 ,uld ,,•'y. I fcp) 
that so ::-trongly bcr,tU~f' I knPw wb t, hi,, a<'' IOin \\"tR in comlf'dion ":it'1 other 
financi~l im-titut:on-:, wl1err he ,,oul1i nut allow u1y su,·h lt-lw..1y at a:J, ami 
whcrw he wati prc:--,cJ for let·way by ,,u1w· ot the p ·oµ't· w!t0 he ngard~ ~o J.1ghly 
M~ -

• 
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-::., I think :-:our 1, T<l, liip mu--t find. if } ou P,prt' , r.ny opinicn upon that, 
that und<'r tl,I' cirrum--tam•t-. ar1 invr tiq::!• 1011 w:1 ,: ii.;.,-;t.j~p,i_ But before I er.mu 
to that kt me,, .v ' 11i~ furtl:rr, tliat 1 1 "'(, ~1r Thc~.1" .,.ys Le did 11ot like tht,e 

• tir·t 1unt, :.ml ht, tl1nu~ 1,t th rr w,mld L,· i.1rP-;r m.1rginal ~o:-:--cs upon tlwm, and 
whilP '\1..-. Arbir ,how~ ~.11t+ ti ,·n· w0uld hP '.1.rgr Ir, t·, 11pnn a grrnt many other 
:; ·•'.rnnts, th,·y •,ooh. month aft<'r month ·,,llo,,ing tl1i, corrPRl')On<l,,nre, rcturnc; 
from the hanl:, anrl w,• kn'lw +:1, • in tlw,-;r n tur,H there wa..; no al10w:mce made 
fpr l'.trrr~it tinn until 1918, I t, · .1k it WJ -I nm not i'!Urr ai out that datr--nnd 
no nllri,, :tnce rnr'1t• for thr--e L-td d< IA:', yf•t thev tw,k month after monih and 
publi-hed rdurn-: whir·'.1 'rif,;rm;1tion in the ht.:id,-. of tLe Dlpt:rtment -a;bciwecl to 
be fal:,:r. 

Now wh<•n l'ltanr-- of ~ 1 •l riuu a nat Jr(' nre mr11\r, I think your lordship 
wil' find f haf an in''l' tignhm i, j•1,tifo d. I Link you wi! 1 not find ·that corr,,s­
pondtmre with t!1r dirrr·tor,: 1,; 1 11r lank, an•l yielding to the pre'-'sure of the 
di rut or:" not t, 1 n,:,l<r• 1.n 'nv,-- •·I! 1ti•1n, w:•..; 1 h0 proprr tbng to do. If you wrre 
tn find that, I t ... nk it wnul·! d, •'. 11~· <·•mfo 't·nrP in hanking imtitutiom to a 
very grrat C' tent; and cl:> trc Y <'C'llh '.l nc·1' in the C:ovrrnmPnt':-: administration 
C't 1 !ir B:mk Ad. 1 

Hum,m powPr:-i arP ]imit:•d, and I brlirvc .::;ir T:1omal" "rhite, a, I ~aid in 
my r xamination, th:1t I wundrml 1.1· got th- time Pve 1 to Y.'fite thr letter:-: that 
h· did, : 'lel bc~"md r1ur ,tion if it hnd not brm f<1r the trrrible pre:, ,ure of the 
\\ .. r ,111rl t t P ovrrwnrh 1 ]i,,t It• ": : un, '.l'r, would '1 uvr :riven thi:;: a murh more 
c '1orouizh examinat:on and inyrs:tig::.ticn t•han he dirt 

,Jii .f anoth r point I want to rcfrr to as fo the examind.ion he m:ide of 
t.Ju.,,..,t 13 rxl-:hit~, wnirh rovrr at·out 63 p'lgr:-. The ~uh"equpnt corrr·ipondenre 
"how,-, +hr~ 1w newr rPad thm I do not bbme him for t hut, bPr:m--e he h,ad 
n· ,t tl1P timr. In fill the :-:uli~Pqurnt rorrr ,ponrlPnre, he only refers to the 
t.hrPl u·r·onnt , tht· Pru, \•nti.• l. t.hc Prllatt and thr FrMt; he nPver mentions 
in hi:,; ~ub:;,rr1urr.t r0rrc pc nn, nr•r the B,u nard at ro,,nt, ,,·hich is referred to 
hy a , 1 µur'.1t.P ,nf',u ,r ,nclnm, and wl,i,·lt was ,:ub-:equcnt:y referred to in 11:r. 
Fi-sllf'f'f; )pt•u E-...:t:11Jit, ;52 anri 53 Hr n<'vrr menfon!'i ~t a~ all. He nevrr 
mentiuni'! thr vari11u,- ar·t·ount,.; rl'f Prr,·d to in ;\Ir. Adair's report. The rras,m-

• ·1bk P}..pl:•rn:t:on i-s that Ill' h,t l not time, and that no mrn in hi:,; po:;it!on, no 
muttc-r h.,w ,.ihrrrnt anot h,,w ·rrr 1t h1' might bl', had time to do all t.he worlc 
J,e h':ld t11 do r• ''i;lt t.ime, and to 11;ive tlm, matt.-r prnpPr att"r,tio11. 

1 h-rc fore a:-: to qur•c:t:on 3 your lord ,hip will an ,,wr that he obt<tined le, 1.r,n 
1-htem,•nt,s uf thrPl' :w•·ount" und<'r :;,r, tion 113 of tlw B:mk Act. Th,Lt he had 
a great ded o: rorr<. p, ,nclcnrr a,; to \\ hethPr Le woulrl or wou~d not have 2.n 
;TI\.,.~+· r:ation urd 0 r ""' tif1n .56.\ ')f thr Btln:;: Ae', an,l t_w+ finally he dctrrm:nf, 1 
not to J1aw any invf--t:i,.1tion but to ~by hi-: hand for the prPsrnt. 

fa not that f1i.· f·L' t.h: ti, what he did? I a:"k my lnrnrrl frirnds? I hke 
to be :di"nlutdy :a::, and I would hke my lcarnrd fricn,b to a'.,'l"Pe with me 
a bout that; 1.ut i::- not that rxn, t 1 y "!mt hr did? The rorrrsrondrn~e with 
La,-h wa-: no inw-tirz;1.t i,m, and t,11<' <·orrr -pcndf'TIC'P ":th r;, J.n wa-s no inve;;ti­
gation, and +!1e rnrre,-.pnndewr with :\Ir. Cn'r'P" And hr \\ ithdrew as he i::aid, 
his requr,t ff'lr 1P1 invt .. ,t;g,1tion by Mr. J, •Ill'>': lw never employed him and 
ncwr paid him aPythini.::. ~o tl:..t outc::de of obkining a report undrr srrt10n 
113 of thr B.mk A et, J-,e ma,~e no invr-,tig<.1tion ut all but he had a grer.t lleal 
of eorre,r .m· l1·nc-,• m to whet'.1er hn would or would r.· ,t, nnd the result of the 
1•ofT'""Pondcn,·C' W:ti'! that lw derided not. tu havr one Lt that t:me, but to ,:;ttiy 
]1J-1 hand pendmg an in, id,, invrc;t.i~at:on l,y Mr. H~n"Y and Mr. Machaffie, the 
n·port of ,vhirh l:r nrver ,,·c·,·iw l and ncY.:r :,:keu for. I am not blaming him 
at all. HP w;1•1 d0ing 2;re 1t awl gowl work all t.he time, more than any ordinary 
man could 11a "e done, and mure tl1..tn he :-:hould },<.1ve been required to do. 
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Tltrn question 4, wlrnt, effort woulrl ::.:n nudit under 8ecti.on 56A of tl1P. Ba!lk 
Ad, if made in 1915, 1916 and 1918, have had upon the condurt pf th\ affairs 
of the F-aid bank, upon tlw position of the prf''ient depositorR. 

Well, both :'.\Ir. Lafleur an•l :'.\Ir . .-::ymington a~ree with me t.hat such an 
inwstigation would have found out- the true state and would ha Ye found out 
that the bank could not go on. I think Mr. F,dwards' evi1krn·e is the hPst 
evidence as to that, bcwause he has made a special study of tnc point for the 
purpo'>e of finding out what the re,:ult wou~d have been. He has giycn Jii,.. 
attention to that and we all know he is one of the very ablest and mo:,;t- impartial 
auditors in Canada. 

I may say that our Committ-ce wcrr considering in tlH' fir:,;t, pbce the 
rcbining of an accountant to make an inve,:tigation for us, Lut we were so 
poor, and whrn we learned that ::\Ir. Edwards had bcrn appointerl by tlic liov­
crnment we all felt c·ntirely ,:ati~fied that no matter by whom he was appointrd 
his inve~ti~ation would be fair to the best of his ability, and would be nble, 
and it was entirely unnrcr,:sa.ry for us to rmploy an hC'< ounLmt an1l pay large 
fee,:, which we would have to enrlcavour to eoEect from such of tl1P depositors 
ltS were willing to contribute in order to Lave any further inwstigatinn. 

Now his investigation shows that in 1916 there was a \o,...., of ~3,370.000, 
which would have di,:posed of the hank':-; capital and reserve and about a million 
dollars additional. Probably if the b:mk were liquidated d t: at. timP, and 
wit-h the double liability, there·would lrnn been enough to pay t!1e dtpu,..itors 
in full. Now that, is the very lw,:t evi,lcrn·e we have, and :\fr. Edwards could 
not, I suppo'le ah.solut,ely fru, l1i:-, mind fr0m the runditions that l·xA- at the 
prPf'fmt time, and from the 1,istory of tl1e tran,urFon. But he no doubt did 
thr Yery best he rould, and the wry bc•,-t any man could, to make a truP 
r-;timate of what an indrprndcnt auditor woulrl Lave found if he had ,mdited 
the bank at that time. Then u..; to the position in 1918, I agree with my 
learned friend \Ir. Rymin1,!ton that the lof'-'-'" th:tt orcurrcd brtwel n 1916 an,! 
1918 were probahlv not very g-n ,1.t, rxrept the amounts that had bl·Pn paid 
out fo diviclrnds, which were not, earned anrl which were dearly lo:-:t, anrl ,,uch 
lo,ses as the bank urtually made, in operating, wl1ich are shown by irr. Clark­
son's evirlPnce. 

At pages 270 and following, ::\Ir. Clark..;on'r- evidenrc ,-,hows thP lo,:se,; 
whi(•h were made from ye:,r to yl':ir, and the"e ran he chrr·kl'd up and will 
show the i,,it.uation of the hank in 1918. Now in 1918 war conditions still 
existed, and unc!er ordinary C'ircum:::ta.nces, if \\ ar romhtions did not exist, 
you ran hardly understand how the lVIinister, when thc,:,e chargr,.; wrre rnurlc 
by Mr. 1\Iachaffie, took no other stepcl th:n to a 0·k for a report from tlie prrc;;i­
dent of the bank und the bank's coun:c;rl. He P"~cerl for no independC'llt evi­
dence. Now Rir vVillium MPredith, iTJ. t 11e Farmer,-,' Bank ra--e, ha, Pmphasized 
that when charge,:; are made against people, to fake t 1ie word of a mtin again,:t 
whom a charge is marle anrl di<.po,-r of it without any furt.' 1 r inw~tigrdion, 
is wrong. In the Farmers' Bank r,t..,l' wl,ich has bern citrrl to you hy ~Ir. 
Laf1rur, the party wl~o made t.hP complaint withdrew them. Tl "t, was thought 
to be no reason why tl1ey should not ue inv0,:;t1gated. 

The answer to quC'stion 4· t 111,n would be tlrnt an auctit woul1l 1,;we found 
out tihe true state of tl:e b:rnk, and woulrl have shown that the bank in 1916 
was insolvent :rnd th:it if liquidatrcl at that time, with a re a,..onable rccovny 
for the double liability, the drpositor~ woul1: have been paid in full. 

~ow in 1918, the an~wer wnul1 1 hr I -hould submit, tl:d it wa'- in~olvent 
to a little greater ell.icnt, but tLtt tl:cre still would have bc·rn mough to huvP. 
paid the depo,itors in full, "taking into ronsirkration the double liability, whirh 
would be $1,946,000, if all wen• reroverr,_l; if sixty per cent wrre recovered, 
there would have been enough; and I brlieve thr recovery in lhe various bank:; 
that have failed has run up to about eighty per cent, so tl-iat f1crc would have 
been enough to h,we paid the depositors in full. 

' 
r 
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Question 5 is murh the ,3me a,- question 4, and what I havr f'tatrd with 
reference to que'ition 4 is al,-0 applicable to question 5. 

I submit that all thr~r matters have bern cnvrred, and your lord {hip 
having givrn the matter the mo-.t c::ueful attention, will be able to answer 
all these que'3tions without seriou,; difficulty. 

Then a-. to any opinion,; fiat. your lord,;hip may expre-;s, I think your 
lord,:hip ,-;wuld, from an hi,:toriral point of view, and u,;ing the calm judgment 
of to-day, with reference to the affairs of eight ye:us airo, which· is a better 
judgmrnt than thr judgment that could bave brm formed at thr time, the 
whole phjlornphy of hit-tory ha" r,-tabli.,hed that, that you will y;f'italize the 
period, and that you will find the true :::ituation. Sir Thomas ·w•,itl•':,; whole 
e,·ick•nce, and rsper.ially his argumrnt the other day, ,.:how,., it. In hi~ evidem' 1 ' 

be 1-ay;:, in answer to my question, that hi;, head, from the ba;;rment to tht. 
attir was fillrd with the war and its problrm-:, and that t'.1e war que1-tionl-' 
were the dominating thing" in his mind durinµ; the whole period. I f1ink you 
will Yi'iualize the situnt:on that he wa,: in, and I believe in the regular sequenrn 
pf rnu~e and effect. The effrrt is dear in this casr. that ~ir Thomas White 
did not f!d the information +.hat hr ought to have got. There is a cause for 
that;. and thr cause for that is that hr wa'3 working eighteen hours a du:r, 
that he wa" overworked, and overpowerrd. and over-engrossed. I don't mean 
to ~-1y engros~i,d to too great an extent, or more than WhS required by the war 
proL!rms, but too great an extrnt t.o give the ronsiderat:on to the Home Bank 
that it requirrd. His time was suffieirntly ocrnpied as Finanre Minister wit!. 
\\"ar finan<'ing, and yet 'he ,nb acting Premier at that time abn. But publir• 
opinion in thi'i rountry, as Sir Thomas White has himself agreed, would nevrr 
be ~afo,fied that a Minif'trr of Finanre, under ordinary rirl'llm:-tanrcs, did hi,a 
duty, if he had chargr,; so :-<rrious· as thef'C laid before him and ~:,ti-.fic ,I h:m-rlf 
with the answers of the bank offirers only. 8-ir William Meredith. under rir­
rum:;;L11H•r-: t,hat were not :-<trenuom like the:-r, ~o held in the Farmer"' Bank 
c·at-,r. Thrrefore, as I <-ay, thrre i-. rau,-c· and effect in this C'a:'P. The effert i" 
that he did not obtain any independent investigdion ,vhatrver. The second 
dfrrt was that he forgot about the matter for• two years and a half. The 
cause was his engro,-'-ment on arrount of the trrrible situa•ion of t.h,e rountry 
at that timr; I will a~k your lord,hip to visualize t.hat and to rxprr,;s a full 
and romplrtc> opinion on that point and recognize the fart that you ran hett.('f 
determine the Rtate of Sir Thoma~- White's mirfrl at that time t'.rnn 1ie ran 
him:-rlf. He ,-ays at the rlos" of his argument: " I do not rr•gard my,::p]f cap- , 
ahle of ,::aying what I ::hould have clone,·' ronsiclering tl1e ,,trrfs that he wa" 
under. 

I think it would be a good thing if an opinion were expre:::,;rd by your lorcl­
ship that when seriou:-1 rlrnq~rs are mndr rg'linst a bank or against an.v othr" 
financial institution, the only kind of an invP:'tigation that i.- real and rrlial-)Jp 
is one by a per,on who is independrnt of the Board or management of t'1r Bant. 

Your lordship might al~o rxprr,-s an opinion, as some evidcnre has brPn 
given, as to the effert ,of th~s cli,-a,-trr on so many people. Sir Thoma,- "\Vh1tr 
-ays it is a disaster whirh is just as much deserving of con;::ideration nc; onr 
c au,rd by a volrano or a ronflagration would be; that the Home, Bank \\"',l"I 

just a,:: truly blovvn up by fraud and decrit at' a physical structure might have 
been hlown up by dynamite. 

One other point. My learned friend Mr. Symington serms to have got a 
lrttrr which ~~l>',; that thrrf' i,:: no prrredf'nt in England for any romprn<:atiPn 
being mar-lr to bank drpositors of a ruined bank. There is however, one pre­
cedrnt and I have obtained a ropy of the English Hansard in which it i 
reported. The Parli:tm"ntary Dchatl'- of Tu""'day, 12th Dcrember, 1922. Thu 
ra-:e is McGrigor's Bank. Tbe Government rould not have been held liahle 
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0n anv evid( nr·1· wl d1·n·r in t i.,1t ,·: ·. but tn -11 .. w l1ow rurrful thr G1lVC'rn­
mt·nt -of Brit rill i~ tit at 11,•11pl1· -1 :Jl n, ,t •.utfrr fr, ·m ·mything with whi r•h t 111 • 

( ;uv1•rnmPnt i~ evr11 rund, ly a 1( inh !, il1i, adi,1n 11 1, t ,k··n. During thr 
timf' of thr war t •;p;-y , ,ftv•·r W:'- n tifil '. th 1t lw <'ould ritlwr hr p1.id din rtly 
by tlw \Yar ()tfir(• ,,r t:.ro-..i~'1 ;111\' h1.nk t 1wt he.might appoint r.~ hi-; agrnt. 
A grP:tt m::uy n: t11r ufti,·1 1,, pn,l :•·,. t lt • m:t'Prity of thm, pn f1·rn·d to b,• 
paid tliroug,;1 a lrnnk, a, a hanlc l ·,ul '. l,,r,k aftrr -.npp1:} '.ng +hir frmili,•-, an,1 
1·0uld --rnd farm any m 1rn·y 11iry ,y:::1tl'd, if tl.rv \\ante 1 ·tny, an,l r',po~e of 
tlw rl·-t rwrnrding to din 1·'·""· wlii· h tltn \\'ar ()fffrr f'nuld not rlo. 11rGrigor'~ 
Bank \\·:1-; onr pf th0 hank- y,-]iid ;1 gn 1: rmmlwr nf 1•th1 rr~ hid appoint,~rl t.• 
th( ir ag11,t. T m, v ,uy tlut t.11· io!ncn,- \' t•rr all ""t :fi,.d tJ,,1t t.hr Govrrnmn1• 
t"nk nu ri·-por, ir,: 1 it y :1-; t , t w :' ,·tion o · ,Dln·ncy 0f t bt -·' agrnt,. But 1 !w 
rP:--t1't of it wa, t'1:1t th,· on-;\'l,:r,- wltn :,.-,.{ :ppni:1h·d 1frGrigur',: Bank :, thi·ir 
agrnt, lrft t]wir drpll~it.- with ilw l, mk, :nd t e L:,-t of tb• Gnvernmrnt u~ing 
\k( ,rigor's b~tnk n, nn, of rhr ,<zrnt- f11r th,, paym(''It of offirr>r.:, g:ivr thr 
b:mk a f'lrtr.in amount of prr tie;,·: tlH' h1·t that thr Gowrnmrnt, h'l<l not 
rdu-1d to r1•,ognizr 1t; aid ti 1· r, ult \\"'1, t'1d while the Government ,'.rniPd 
all fr1liility, hn,I q11''1 rrnp, rl_\· ,:ci. 1':1 .\' hrc•ugLt in a h:11 1:.nd pa,,rd it1 pay:nrr 
t :w ckpo-:itor, d :\frCrig ,r ·~ Hn:;k fi 't_\· , < ut, on tihe dollar. 

\fr. ;:;;Yl\IINCTox: Kc,1 p, yir;L ti< d1 po,-itllr-. 
1\Ir. l\1, LAl LllLIN: Paying a' th( dt>Jio,-itor~. 
:\1r. :--,v,,~,1a11N: O', n,1, tit,\' p ti I t'.( of!i, ·:·-, wht1,,• m,,nry had bPfn 

rut trl!'rr 1)y •'.1,· Co,· rn:r• 1,1 , :, t' ,jr tt!:,-r,t, ·"r 1!1~trihution. Purdy thr 
:,rmy offi1·,· 0

, and t l11·ir ,., i ,·:•,-;. 
1\Ir. LAJ'Li l 1c The w,,rd, arr t'.1,ar: 

"Tl'.r e.,timat1· plu\'i, 1.(•-; for thr rc•!irf d 1 :-rtain :uffrrrr~ by the 
hilurt> of .:\TP~·r, ;\[c•<;,i;.r1,r'~ B·lllk. \\·1 o wPrr Anrn; agrnt,- and banker-. 
l' i-s propo-:rd t,, n1al- ' an rx gr:.t i,l p·,:vn11· t t1rn" ,I,- t 1-r• lo~- ,·s , ,f Army 
offi(•f'r-s Lnd oiJtr" - wbc , r111rnP1 tion ,,·1t 1 tl1r bank r,r,·urn, I t nrougl1 the:r 
1·onnt>c-tio11 wit', ti,,· P"lll a·• .\rm) H:•·nt--, :mrl 1h<' •l"ll rc·•pi:l'Pd 1n pin: 
a 10s: divi1!(•ncl tu -u· 1• (·tr,kn ,r- 11,·rr an,l abuvt• \\h~t i:- rt>r·1·i\'l'd by 
tl.r liquid.t.tion .,f t]1(' a- 1·t l, tit,, ()tf.1 j,ll Rrr rivt>:·, i, r-timatrd t'o 
:m-:ount, w1tl. t],., ('O t,. of di•:. ,ution, to £~10,000.'' 

.Mr. ~YM'~G·111,: I I'<', I .a !1tt:,, fo. •!ll r, -:\Ir. '\ft,L:,,1~ ),Jir:, :•nil I .un ,-'._tti-:­
fiPrl, it wa:,; only the Arn.' p1,,plt- \\!J(I got t'., ir m, nt_f. 

Mr. :'.\TrLAl'GHLIN: All prrti"" ,, 110 ,,('J'l' , 1mn.,drd w1t 11 L1r firm a:-: Anny 
a~en+.,, or WPre r•pnnr"tl ,l "·it.h the lt·mk ,. - Army :u~rnt ,. ~ 

Of 1·oun;;e, P:1r'1:tnH'"' i., not b, 1und by :my pn,·Pdtnt, but [ ,,,ay· s,,y I am ! 
not a,king your lord ~:iip to 11,:. \,• ·rn~· '( ('' n ·· m:rda ':on a, tn w!1i.t the- ( ,ovrrn-
rn<·nt ;,l1ould do, "o far )t" what Hi,. ti,:· c' ould briner, in or }Yl,.tt I ompl•n,..ntion 
thry ,:Jioulcl givt·. I ,lo not '. hink t' , t i;: ~ulm_1ittt>,l t,1 the Comrni~.-i1,rn•r, a11d 
that is a m·1tt,,,. nf tl1r r<•-spt111-ibili1.1 of '\Iini.,t · '· I do nd think it i,,; , on­
;,titutional for thr ::\Iini,;t1»· to rl'ly !lll your upimon 01· n·; ,o,t : , tn his policy. 
Thr Uovernment ~ulnni~, tl11· n-.·th•r to you t, find tl.1 Ltt't, ilu :1 on tlw f·•c•t..: 
t.hey will framf' tl:. :•o··. ·y 'Ul'I h · rt ,r',n,il•lr to P11 .. l1am1•11t for tb.t pnlil'Y. 
Tlwy do not c:,k you to fru, ,. or ,11gg( t :1 pt1h'.'y t" t'.1t·m. Am I riu;L+ alnut 
that? 

Hifl LoRD,-"HIP; That "'' 1 ,,- to be tlw )"o;:t rr:• "nalilr l'·,n,..fruC'tion. 
:.'\1r. McLA: GHLIX: I f,ink I L.n ri!.!;ht :t'•out tha1. I submit ynur lor,H:ip 

ha~ had the •111•, Pr vt·ry fully ~ ·t hrfo:·r you, ar.d w1 pri,bably 1•\.t1 nil< •l 1t. mul'h 
more fully if the m..ltt>r had · 'ot b,•1-n 1:1 i11g f11 1·• lwr t!1:m your lord~hip; m· 
1m<ln--t.ood t!tut th:·, evi• kn(·t> \",t, be1::g print I'(: kr tl n lwnt>fit pf mrmber,; of 
Parliamrut antl roi :ht> H,•11:: mg and ComnH "''l' Conm11ttc1•, and fur that rr:1,m1 
we thought it wih anJ prupl'r to put ever) tltirg in. 
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I th1a1t your lord-,hip for your very exnreding 1 1urte,:y and patIPnce during this invc,tigation; rd~d I ::m i:;ure your l· nl~Lip kno\\ in,~ that v.-l:' dr ,ire to o_!:)tain imC'h relid as thr Governnwnt and P:"·liarnr·it dPh rmi1,c· 'o give u,-;, Lt as P~trly a date as po:,;~ ible, "iJl givl : , an intPr;>n report at yr ,ur l .1rl 'l''it convu1ience. I am ;;ure I do no~ nel'd to ,.;•1y u ~ 'hing aLout tl1at. 7\fr. LEE: \Viii your lord--1.iµ bPLr with !llf' for a c·0up]C' of ,uinutc ,? I had not intrndcd to reply, bad it not lxr-,n for tl.P ·,•mar:,,: \\hieh my le11 rncd friend of the <lovernment Cou11,cl, '.\1 · L::dcur drew tu yuur ]onbhip', aitl•ntion. I might point out to your lv,d-,nip that wl·m the petition of t!ie depo::itors w:,:-- prc-;cntf'd < l'rtain all<·g:.tion-- Wl n• 1 h,,,.r rnadP, and tlww were t·l'rtain repre­sentation-; made to the depu"iturc-, and \\·' ,,.n the· Ordr·r in Cuunc·il wa, drawn it wa'l rPstrirtC',! to <'rrtain thini:,:; bllt whC'n that w:1, l•:-tr nrlcd, I might point out that the Gowrnment wr,~ Jn·parl J to ~un-e tl1P fulll'~t po:,.:;ible investigation made r.nd to authorize the (\rmni~,io,1 to inYl .,t igt tp the affair,: of the Bank frorp the i,.;sue of it, eharter do1rn to t!te rla:.L A ib f.1 '.ure. 
"The C'.ommittce uf the Pri,·,· CPuw·il ther('fore advise that be poweu- of the Clrnmi -;;o:.1n uncle~ t11e -,::._id ( lnlt r in Counl'il be not Jimitrd to tl,c spic1tic /ears j91;;, 1916 and 1918 ,!'!erred to in the peti­tion of t!JL drpu,-itor'l, bm ,hould <·Xfl•nd tu :.u ·•11ve"tig,1ti(Jn uf tl1<' affairs of the :-:aid bartk during the wLole 111k1, d 'x twl ·11 t'.H' i,:,,ue of the• bhnk'.; charter an,! the failmt• of tlH· -«id u.mk, in..Judin~ any repl'l'"cntutions made to the Uovnnmuit of th(' day ,1., to 1!:-- c·o>Hlitiun, Hny af'tion taken liy way of the Mi11 i,iter,.; of _Finanee ,1p11n ,<ll! h n•prc...;cntations a::, may !iJ.ve be<'n made, and the effed 011 tlit• p,:,-ition of tlir dcpo;-;it0r-, of anv audit under sedion 56A 01· the Bank A,-t if nwdu at am· time in conse-quenct uf :-;ueh n·pre:--l'ntation"." · 

~ ow what I :,,a) in ans\"l·r to the kanu•d ( 'oun, ·I i" this, my lord: that , therefore thi,.; inve:;;t1gation bt•ing a wi1 1
,· free, opt"'l, inn .-ti1r:1tion a:, the (h,n:rn­went de-,ired, and a,; the Ordl'r in Courn·il , untemplu tl. l, it <·.,,.tainly w:,s witLin the scope of Coun-:d to 111:.ke rd1·n,w t' to and n1akr d"dud:111," from the foets anu the eirc·umstances as he ~'.HY fit l.l·n\ so lu11g ,,::, he did tho,;c in a rea::,onable way. And :-<o far a:-- that is l'Ol,11·rn<'rJ, my lord, while I am quite aware of what my learned friend 1\lr. Lafleur ,,1irl flgarn:n~ t'1c matti•r of enmpr,nsation to theRe drpositor,;, I beg to ,,ay to your lordship that in any rdtren('r:, I made to Sir Thoma-, Wl11te, or to ~ir Ht·nry Dr.1yton or tn Mr. Ficldmg, tlwt I have i;;hown all tlirougL my addrr,-; tlt:1t I ra:-- not quarrdlirig witli the-.e g<,ntlemen so much aR with the systPm of the Finan,~ Dep:irt 1 nrn'.; Ly \\ hi,·n a L,mk r0uld be wrecked under the eircumst1<111 e,i a:;; they are du,l•llJ,.;f'd to your lord~liip and ,;o nothing should go out from t.iti-; Commi,-, i,m that I :·m atLtC''.;:ing :-,,r TJoma, W'.1itP, or Air Henry Drayton, or Mr. Fi !Jmg Lut I :.m at!.1<•ki111,; tlte .Finance Depart­ment of thi:;; country, rcpre;,rntrd by -iir Thoma:: \Vl,1k, rPprcsented by Sir Henry Drayton, und reprr;..l:'nted by l\lr. I'ielding during tile tirne that thc·y were pre:>iding over thi,; Department. 

Now Rir T 110ma:3 'White and all of tht r gl ntkmen 1-re ju,t a,, mueh the f.ervant::l of the pt•ople as; I am t'tl' suv.:mt of my diPnt", and it i:- th('ir duty, an,l tlic duty of the Department, to look 1·1,r<'fully onr thr matter;c; of banking in this country, and it wa, in that rnpaeity tlut I ,va.-: pre~nting to your lord­,;hip my argument rc·gr ri'.ing the fin:inc:al ~y,.tr•m and t:1e l'in1t1He Department reprP~ented by the-:e g1mtlrmen. · 
Now so far as we an• r:m<'t•rn1•1L my lord, :,;:.;r Thoma, \\rhite has asked you to give him a eert1fieatn of. h:" hont ty in tLi:-- mdtc..r. '\>Ye have ~ever que:;;­tioned Sir Thomas Whitt 's bnrn.: ,ty. Tbt· drpo,itors of thi:o bank have never question(;d it. Anrl we have ne,·er qU<--tirmed particularly hi,; diligence. But we have que:;;tiomd that that di 11gencn, w;1i< h he ,o carefully carriPd out during certain periods of the war, did not rernlt in anything; and we have qm:::itioned 
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the diligen<'e tk:1t took place aft<rwarrls by hi,- ;;w•rt•:',m<; and that i0 nll that 

,n were a~king \Yhen \\L pn-1nh,l 11,i~ pPtitiun. 

I dei'ire ,r.1:---ll to thank y,mr lcird-hip for yon!' kind r<Jurfr,y and t11e great 

putitnre with ·whid1 you han· li-tr1H Ll tu the tlqiu-itor:-' n,:<t>. 

His LORD:-HIP: (il·ntlemrn, i:· that 1'<,nrlud<·~ tlll" argm1,,nt on ~'.Ji:; bnn,·h 

of the ca-w, it will le takt n undn cun~irkr:1tion. 

When :,Lall we 1·1·a:'i',·mble? 

)1.r. LAI-·: TR: Pnil1°r till' 1·in·u11,,:tan,p ,~iat y1,ur lord:---liip will ,\1-·.1.-- :-timP 

timP for delih•ration 9 

Hii' Lu1msHIP: Ye:-'. 

Mr. LAnn'R: I supptN' foe only kind of adjournment we r:::.n t, .. ke will ht· 

~in1_:_ dil', tu rca,;:-rmbll' at thr cali of yuur lord,-:1ip through the ,n·retary. 

His LOJ.d>SHIP: Ye-,, the Commi--:on will ,djourn, subject to call through 

the i-'ecretary. Noti,·e ,dll be i::iven to you, genth·m< n, when the wurk will bl' 

resumPd. 

Proceerlinp:;: ~tand adjourned at 4.35 p.m. Tm~day 20th day of ;\fay, 1924, 

f'ine die. 
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